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PART I
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS

Certain statements and information in this FormrKl®vay constitute “forward-looking statements” withtthe
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Actl®05. The words “believe,” “except,” “anticipatéglan,”
“intend,” “foresee,” “should,” “would,” “could” omther similar expressions are intended to ideritifyvard{ooking
statements, which are generally not historicalature. These forward-looking statements are basagiocurrent
expectations and beliefs concerning future devetymand their potential effect on us. While managrg believe
that these forward-looking statements are reasersebhnd when made, there can be no assurandettiiat
developments affecting us will be those that wécgrate. All comments concerning our expectatiarsfiture
revenues and operating results are based on agafsts for our existing operations and do not drelilhe potential
impact of any future acquisitions. Our forward-lgak statements involve significant risks and uraiettes (some
of which are beyond our control) and assumptioas ¢buld cause actual results to differ materitthyn our
historical experience and our present expectatiosojections. Important factors that could caastial results to
differ materially from those in the forward-lookisgatements include, but are not limited to, thaescribed in
(1) Part I, Item 1A — Risk Factors and elsewherthia Form 10-K, (2) our reports and registratitatements filed
from time to time with the SEC and (3) other anmmments we make from time to time.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliaméerevard-looking statements, which speak only fathe
date hereof. We undertake no obligation to publigigate or revise any forward-looking statementsr dfie date
they are made, whether as a result of new infoomafuture events or otherwise.

ltem 1. Business
Introduction

References herein to “we,” “us,” “our,” “Companyfi“TreeHouse” refers to TreeHouse Foods, Inc.iend
subsidiaries unless the context specifically statémplies otherwise.

TreeHouse is a Delaware corporation incorporatedamuary 25, 2005 by Dean Foods Company to accsimpli
a spin-off of certain specialty businesses tohirsholders which was completed on June 27, 2(66e $he
Company began operating as an independent entitgsiexpanded its product offerings through a rermb
acquisitions. On April 24, 2006, the Company acegiithe private label soup and infant feeding bissirieom Del
Monte Corporation (“Soup and Infant Feeding”). OaWwB1, 2007, the Company acquired VDW Acquisitiotal,
(“San Antonio Farms”a manufacturer of Mexican sauces. On October 1B/ 20e Company acquired the asse
E.D. Smith Income Fund (“E.D. Smith”), a manufaetuof salad dressings, jams and various sauces.

We are a food manufacturer servicing primarily il grocery and foodservice distribution chasn€lur
products include nodairy powdered coffee creamer; private label ssafad dressings and sauces; Mexican se
jams and pie fillings; pickles and related produictiant feeding products; and other food produéfs. manufactur
and sell the following:

« private label products to retailers, such as supgkeats and mass merchandisers, for resale undesttikers’
own or controlled labels

* private label and branded products to the foodservidustry, including foodservice distributors aradional
restaurant operator

» branded products under our own proprietary brapdisiarily on a regional basis to retailers, i

 products to our industrial customer base, includorgepackaging in portion control packages andise as
ingredients by other food manufacture

Effective January 1, 2008, we realigned the mamethich the business is managed and now focus on
operating results based on channels of distributidrich has resulted in a change to the operatinigreportable
segments. Previously, we managed our business bagewduct categories. Our change in
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operating and reportable segments from producgosites to channel of distribution is consistentwit
management’s long-term growth strategy and wasssacg due to the acquisitions that occurred du2b@y. The
change in operating and reportable segments withjp¢he Company to integrate future acquisitioraren
efficiently and provide our investors with greatemparability to our peer group, as many of theso gresent
results based on channels of distribution.

We discuss the following segments in “Managemebi&ussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of OperationsNorth American Retail Grocery, Food Away From Horaed Industrial and Export. The F
performance indicators of our segments are nes shakbars, gross profit and direct operating margihich is gross
profit less the cost of transporting products tetomer locations (referred to in the tables belewfieight out”),
commissions paid to independent sales brokersdaect selling and marketing expenses.

Our North American Retail Grocery segment sellswbeal and private label products to customers witingn
United States and Canada. These products inclualelaioy powdered creamer; condensed and ready te sexys
broths and gravies; baby food; salad dressingsandes; pickles, peppers and relishes; Mexicaresaaad jams,
pie fillings and aseptic products. Brand names adtdin the North American Retail Grocery segmemide the
following pickle brandsfFarman’s®, Nalley’s®, Peter Pipef®, and Steinfel® . Also sold are brands related to
sauces and syrupBennet's®, Hoffman Hous® , Roddenbery’s Northwood&sand San Antonio Farn®s. Infant
feeding products are sold under tbature’s Goodnes® brand, while our non-dairy powdered creamer is solder
our proprietaryCremora® brand. Our refrigerated products are sold undemMbeha Mix® and Second Natur@
brand names, and our jams and other sauces ararsigd theE.D. SmitH® and Habitant® brand names.

Our Food Away From Home segment sells non-dairydered creamers, pickle products, salsas, aseptic an
refrigerated products, and sauces to food servistomers, including restaurant chains and foodliligton
companies, within the United States and Canada.

Our Industrial and Export segment includes the Camg{s co-pack business and non-dairy powdered a@eam
sales to industrial customers for use in industqailications, including products for repackagingaortion control
packages and for use as ingredients by other faotifacturers. Export sales are primarily to indaktustomers.

See Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statesyamd “Managemerg’Discussion and Analysis of Financ
Condition and Results of Operations” for informati@lated to the Company’s business segments.

We operate our business as Bay Valley Foods, LIBay“Valley”) in the United States and E.D. SmittoHs,
LTD (“E.D. Smith”) in Canada. Bay Valley is a Delave limited liability company, a wholly owned suttisiry of
TreeHouse Foods, Inc. and holds all of the realtestnd operating assets related to our busind3sSHith is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Bay Valley.

Business Strategy

Our strategy is to optimize our current businessgnow through acquisitions.

Optimize the Current Business —

« Improve marketing strategies in an effort to in@eaales to national accounWhile we have high private
label market share in the United States for ouraainy powdered creamer, soup, salad dressing ightep
and high branded and private label market shajans in Canada, we still have significant poterfial
growth with several key national retailers and feerdice customers that we either do not curremttyes or
that we currently serve in a limited manner. Weiat to focus on gaining these customers, and expand
our relationships with existing customers, by imfang our marketing strategies through more sopdastid
account planning and customer targeting. We belieeeacquisition of E.D. Smith will open opportuest for
our U.S. based business, as well as open newtdistnn channels for E.D. Sm’s product portfolio
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 Further expand our cost advanta¢ Although we are a low cost producer, we belida there are
additional cost savings opportunities that existun operations. We intend to pursue these oppitigarby
improving supply chain efficiency, including manciiaring, sourcing and distributio

* Improve returns We measure the business by means of EVA (Econwalite Added) and use the analysis
to develop and execute a “Portfolio Strategy” #illdws us to focus our resources on those segraents
channels where we can generate a high re

Grow Through Acquisitions —

« Build on current business core competenc We believe our core competency is our low costufecturing
capability and our ability to service our customeidficiently with a single order, invoice and shipm. We
expect to focus on acquisitions within our curnertduct categories, as well as adjacent categt

« Develop new platforms for the private label anddeervice markets Both the private label retail and
foodservice markets are growing faster than thadwd retail grocery markets, yet the manufactuasebs
highly fragmented. With the retailer consolidatiorg believe that retailers will place increased kagis on
reducing supply chain complexity and costs. While glatform focus is on shelf stable products, vilkalso
explore new platforms in frozen and refrigerateadpicts for both retail and foodservis

Our Products

Financial information about our North American Rle@rocery, Food Away From Home, and Industrial and
Export segments can be found under “Managemengsussion and Analysis of Financial Condition andu®s of
Operations.”

The following table sets forth our consolidated sedes by business segments and products, foetreepnded
December 31, 2008:

Business Segments

North American Food Away
Retail Grocery From Home Industrial and Export Total
% of % of % of % of
Product Product Product Product
Product Net Sale:  Sale: Net Sale:  Sales Net Sale: Sale: Net Sale: Sales
- Wars in thousands) - -
Non-dairy powdered cream' $160,77( 17.5%$ 6,00¢ 2.C% $185,06: 63.€%$ 351,83t 23.4%
Soup and infant feedir 268,29. 29.: — — 68,22¢ 23.€ 336,51¢ 224
Pickles 155,45¢ 17.C 162,67( 55.Z 7,452 2.€ 325,57¢ 21.7
Salad dressinc 154,28 16.¢ 44( 0.1 2,163 0.7 156,88: 10.t
Jams and other sauc 128,49( 14.C 25,431 8.7 — — 153,92 10.f
Aseptic 5,45¢ 0.€ 69,39t 23.¢ 8,341 2.8 83,19¢ 5.5
Mexican sauce 33,35¢ 3.6 11,92¢ 4.1 7,43¢ 2.6 52,71¢ 23
Refrigeratec 10,99¢ 1.2 18,14¢ 6.2 10,84: 3.7 39,98’ 2.7
Total $917,10: 100.(% $294,02( 100.(% $289,52¢ 100.(% $1,500,65( 100.(%

Non-Dairy Powdered Creamer— Non-dairy powdered creamer is produced from saytoil, casein (a milk
protein) and corn syrup. It is used as coffee cerammwhitener and as an ingredient in baking, tBsyes and gravy
mixes and similar products.

Product offerings in this product category inclylivate label products packaged for retailers, saagh
supermarkets and mass merchandisers, foodservidegis for use in coffee service and other indaistri
applications, including repackaging in portion cohpackages and as an ingredient by other food
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manufacturers. We also manufacture and selCtieenora® brand of non-dairy powdered creamer. Non-dairy
powdered creamer represented 23.4% of our consetideet sales, for the year ended December 31, 2008

Soup and Infant Feeding— Soup, broth and gravy are manufactured usingtaddes, meats and other
ingredients which are sourced from outside supli®ur products are packaged in cans of varioes sfrom sing|
serve to larger sized cans. TreeHouse also manudégcinfant feeding products at the Pittsburghtplammarily
under theNature's Goodnes®brand. The majority oNature’s Goodnes8 products are manufactured by
TreeHouse in glass jars, with co-packers produaimgriety of cereals and juice products. Infantfeg products
are developed and marketed around the differegestaf a baby’s developmeMature’s Goodnes8 products are
all natural and are produced under very tight qualdntrol, from sourcing of raw materials througjass handling
and finished product processing. In 2008, the nitgjof the soup and infant feeding sales were &or#tail channel
and represented 22.4% of our consolidated net.sales

Pickles — We produce a variety of products at our pickiedoiction facilities, including pickles, peppers,
pickled vegetables, jalapeno peppers, pepperopejpers, sliced banana peppers and pickled okral¥ganclude
sauces and syrups in our pickles product cateddrgse products are sold to the retail, foodsermiaindustrial
markets. Pickles and related products represepigehaimately 21.7% of our consolidated net sale2(i68.

Salad Dressings— We produce both pourable and spoonable salasidgs. Our salad dressings are sold
primarily to supermarkets and mass merchandisessigihout the United States and Canada, and encempasy
different flavor varieties. We believe we are taggkest supplier of private label salad dressind®th the United
States and Canada. Salad dressings representéd @Ddur consolidated net sales in 2008.

Jams and other sauces- We produce jams, pie fillings and other saucesia¥dinona, Ontario facility. Thes
products are sold to supermarkets, mass merchasadisd foodservice customers in the United Statd<Canada,
and represented 10.3% of our consolidated net saZ308.

Aseptic Products— Aseptic products are processed under heat asdyre in a sterile production and
packaging environment, creating a product that désequire refrigeration prior to use. Our prppaliaseptic
products are cheese sauces and puddings. Thesetsrade sold primarily in the foodservice marketans and
flexible packages. Aseptic products representethmbour consolidated net sales in 2008.

Other products —Our San Antonio plant, produces Mexican saucedydimg salsa, picante sauce, cheese dip,
enchilada and taco sauces, which are sold to wtdifoodservice customers. We also make refrigérsdlad
dressings at our California facility for sale iretretail and foodservice markets. Each of thesdymtdines
represented less than 5% of our consolidated tet 5a2008.

Marketing, Sales and Distribution

We sell our products through various distributitianels, including retail grocery, foodservice rilisttors anc
industrial, including food manufacturers and reayEes of foodservice products. We have an intexalak force
that manages customer relationships and also mamagdroker network, which is used for sales tairand
foodservice accounts. Industrial food productsgemeerally sold directly to customers without the o§a broker.
Most of our customers, including long-standing oustrs, purchase products from us either by purcbiaks or
pursuant to contracts that generally are terminabieill. We have many customer supply arrangemtasare not
evidenced by written agreements.

In 2008, sales to retailers, foodservice and irrialsind export customers represented 61.1%, 19686
19.3%, respectively, of our consolidated net sales.

A relatively limited number of customers accountddarge percentage of our consolidated net stesthe
year ended December 31, 2008, our largest custdfa-Mart Stores, Inc. and its affiliates, accounted fo
approximately 15.1% of our consolidated net salgsother customer accounted for 10% or more ofxbmpany’s
consolidated net sales.

Our products are generally shipped from inventgrgrureceipt of a customer order. In certain cases,
produce to order. Sales order backlogs are notriabte our business.
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Products are shipped from our production facilii@sctly to customers or to our distribution cestevhere
products are consolidated for shipment to custonwesbelieve this consolidation of products enabke$o improv:
customer service by offering our customers a singler, invoice and shipment.

Patents and Trademarks

We own a number of registered trademarks. Whilearesider our trademarks to be valuable assetspowmd
consider any trademark to be of such material ingpae that its absence would cause a materialpdisruof our
business. No trademark is material to any one seggme

Seasonality

Demand for our products does not vary significabthquarter. However, sales of soup products havigleer
percentage of sales in the fourth quarter and I®akss in the second quarter. Pickles tend to hiyeer sales in th
second quarter and non-dairy powdered creamer terfu/e higher sales in the fourth quarter.

Raw Materials

Raw materials used in our operations include psmE@®segetables and meats, soybean oil, coconuiasiin,
cheese, corn syrup, cucumbers, peppers and fheselraw materials generally are purchased ungeiysu
contracts, and we occasionally engage in forwasdngy when we determine such buying to be to owaathge.
We believe these raw materials to be generallyl@iai from a number of suppliers.

The most important packaging materials used inoperations are glass, plastic containers, corrdgate
containers, metal closures and metal cans. Mogiaggeg materials are purchased under lterga supply contract
We believe these packaging materials to be gegeaxadlilable from a number of suppliers, with theeption of
glass, which we procure through a long-term supphtract that expires in December 2010.

Certain of our raw materials are purchased undeg-term contracts in an attempt to guarantee sugpdyin
order to obtain lower costs. The prices of our naaterials increase and decrease based on suppteamthd, and
other factors. We are not always able to adjuspoiaing to reflect changes in raw materials cogtdatility in the
cost of our raw materials can adversely affectpmrformance, as price changes often lag behindgelsain costs.

For additional discussion of the risks associatéh the raw materials used in our operations, $@®ivn
Trends and Uncertainties — Prices of Raw Matefials.

Working Capital

Our short-term financing needs are primarily foraficing working capital during the year. Due to the
seasonality of pickle and fruit production, drivianharvest cycles, which occur primarily duringelapring and
summer, inventories generally are at a low poirafa spring and at a high point during the faltreasing our
working capital requirements. In addition, we buigentories of salad dressings in the spring angbsn the
summer months in anticipation of large seasonairsbnts that begin late in the second and thirdtquar
respectively. Our long-term financing needs wilpdrd largely on potential acquisition activity. @avolving
credit agreement, plus cash flow from operationgxipected to be adequate to provide liquidityofor planned
growth strategy and current operations, and iserpéected to be impacted by the current creditxridge
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€@ahdition and Results of Operations — Liquidity a®apital
Resources.”

Competition

We have several competitors in each of our opeyaEgments. For sales of private label productsttilers,
the principal competitive factors are price, pradygality and quality of service. For sales of prots to foodservic
and industrial and export customers, the prinajpahpetitive factors are product quality and speatfons,
reliability of service and price.
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Competition to obtain shelf space for our brandextipcts with retailers generally is based on theeeted or
historical performance of our product sales reativ our competitors. The principal competitivetdas for sales of
our branded products to consumers are brand regmyand loyalty, product quality and price. Mo$bar branded
competitors have significantly greater resourcestaand recognition than we do.

The consolidation trend is continuing in the regmdcery and foodservice industries, and mass raedibers
are gaining market share. As our customer basénc@stto consolidate, we expect competition tonisify as we
compete for the business of fewer, large customers.

Employees

As of December 31, 2008, our work force consisteapproximately 3,300 full-time employees in theited
States and Canada.

For More Information About Us

Our fiscal year ends on December 31. We furnishstagkholders with annual reports containing audite
financial reports. As a public company, we regyldite reports and proxy statements with the Se@siand
Exchange Commission. These reports are requirédeb$ecurities Exchange Act of 1934 and includasahn
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form@,@Gurrent reports on Form 8K, and proxy statements
Schedule 14A. Anyone may read and copy any of taterials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Publeféence
Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington DC, 2054@rmétion on the operation of the Public ReferencerR may
be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-038@ SEC maintains an internet site that containgeqort,
proxy and information statements, and our other 8E@s. The SEC's internet address is http://waec.govWe
make our SEC filings available on our own intersigt as soon as reasonably practicable after theg heen filed
with the SEC. Our internet address is http://wweetrousefoods.com.

The information on our website is not incorporabgdeference into this annual report on Form 10-K.

Corporate Governance

Our Code of Ethics, which is applicable to all af @mployees and directors, is available on oypa@te
website at http://www.treehousefoods.com, alon@pwie Corporate Governance Guidelines of our Boérd
Directors and the charters of the Committees ofBmard of Directors. Any waivers that we may granbur
executive officers or directors under the Code thids, and any amendments to our Code of Ethidsbwiposted
on our corporate website. Any of these items orafryur filings with the Securities and Exchangar@oission are
available in print to any shareowner who requéstat Requests should be sent to Investor RelafiorsHouse
Foods, Inc., Two Westbrook Corporate Center, SL0f0, Westchester, IL 60154.

We submitted the certification of our chief exeeatofficer required by Section 303A.12 of the NYSEted
Company Manual, relating to our compliance with BhéSE’s corporate governance listing standards]wone 2,
2008 without qualification. In addition, we haveluided the certifications required of our chief extéve officer an
our chief financial officer by Section 302 of tharBanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and related rules wiipeet to the
quality of our disclosures in our Form 10-K for tywar ended December 31, 2008, as Exhibits 31. Barg]
respectively, to this Form 10-K.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the factors discussed elsewheraimReport, the following risks and uncertaintiesid
materially and adversely affect the Company’s bessin financial condition, results of operations eash flows.
Additional risks and uncertainties not presentlpwn to the Company also may impair the Company&sniass
operations and financial condition.
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Continued disruptions in the financial markets cadilaffect our ability to fund acquisitions or to reaw our
outstanding credit agreements upon expiration atraurrent favorable terms.

As of December 31, 2008, we had $472.0 millionwktanding indebtedness under our $100 millionseni
notes private placement, which expires on Septe@®e2013 and our $600 million revolving creditegment,
which expires August 31, 2011. The inability to geate sufficient cash flow to satisfy our debt géations, or to
refinance our debt obligations on commercially ogable terms, would have a material adverse efiectur
business, financial condition, and results of opi@na. In addition, the inability to access addiibborrowing at
commercially reasonable terms could affect ouritghib pursue additional acquisitions. U.S. credérkets have
recently experienced significant dislocations aqditlity disruptions which have caused credit sgsean
prospective debt financings to widen considerabhese circumstances have materially impacted lityuid debt
markets, making financial terms for borrowers laggactive, and in certain cases have resulteddrubhavailability
of certain types of debt refinancing. Continuedartainty in the credit markets may negatively intpaga ability to
access additional debt financing or to refinandstigrg indebtedness on favorable terms, or aEafnts affecting
the credit markets have also had an adverse @ffecther financial markets in the U.S., which magksnit more
difficult or costly for us to raise capital througie issuance of common stock or other equity sesirAny of thes:
risks could impair our ability to fund our operatfoor limit our ability to expand our business apdld possibly
increase our interest expense, which could havatarnal adverse effect on our financial results.

Increases in interest rates may negatively affeatréngs.

We had outstanding variable rate debt of $372.0anilvith an average interest rate of 1.80% as of
December 31, 2008, which accounts for approximat8l2% of our total debt outstanding at Decembe2808. In
October, 2008, we entered into an interest rate@ $aratwo years, with an effective date of Novemb®@y 2008, at a
fixed rate of 2.9% on $200 million of our varialslge debt which effectively results in an averagerest rate of
3.06% on our variable rate debt at December 318 286wever, as we still have a significant portafrvariable rat
debt, we may still experience interest rate vatgtiincreases in interest rates we pay on ouradeirate debt could
materially affect our earnings.

Fluctuations in foreign currencies may adverselyfatt earnings.

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in foreigrrency exchange rates primarily related to rawemiat
purchases. We are also exposed to fluctuatiorfeeinvalue of our foreign currency investment in Ganadian
subsidiary, E.D. Smith. Additionally, input costs tertain Canadian sales are denominated in Wifrs, further
impacting the effect foreign currency fluctuationay have on the Company.

The Canadian assets, liabilities, revenues andnsgseare translated into U.S. dollars at applicekédange
rates. Accordingly, we are exposed to volatilitithe translation of foreign currency earnings dufiuctuations in
the value of the Canadian dollar, which may neg#tivmpact the Company’s results of operations famahcial
position.

As we are dependent upon a limited number of custosn the loss of a significant customer, or conslaltion of
our customer base, could adversely affect our opigigresults.

A limited number of customers represent a largeqraiage of our consolidated net sales. Our operatisults
are contingent on our ability to maintain our satethese customers. The competition to supply yrtwdto these
high volume customers is very high. We expect ¢hsiggnificant portion of our net sales will continto be derived
from a small number of customers. These customgpisaily do not enter into written contracts, ahd tontracts
that they do enter into generally are terminableilit Our customers make purchase decisions base
combination of price, product quality and custosenvice performance. If our product sales to onmare of these
customers are reduced, this reduction may haveterimlsadverse effect on our business, resultpefations and
financial condition.
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Increases in input costs, such as raw materialschaging materials and fuel costs, could adverseffeat
earnings.

The costs of raw materials, as well as packagingmads and fuel, have varied widely in recent geand
future changes in such costs may cause our reffudiserations and our operating margins to fluasgnificantly.
Many of the raw materials used in our products tosgnusually high cost levels during 2008 and 2003luding
processed vegetables and meats, soybean oil, cakese and packaging materials. In addition,dasts, which
represent the most significant factor affectindjtytcosts at our production facilities and oumtsportation costs
have fluctuated widely over the last twenty-fourntits. Furthermore, certain input requirements, sischlass used
in packaging, are available only from a limited raenof suppliers.

Changes in the prices of our products may lag lietiranges in the costs of our materials. Competitiv
pressures also may limit our ability to quicklysaiprices in response to increased raw materiatkaging and fuel
costs. Accordingly, if we are unable to increasepices to offset increased raw material, packggind fuel costs,
our operating profits and margins could be advgraffected. In addition, during periods of fallingsts of inputs,
customers may request price decreases from utiatisns where we have made forward purchasesyoihiaits at
higher costs than the current market.

Our private label and regionally branded productsagnnot be able to compete successfully with natigna
branded products.

For sales of private label products to retaildrs, grincipal competitive factors are price, prodyality and
quality of service. For sales of private label proid to consumers, the principal competitive factame price and
product quality. In many cases, competitors wittiamally branded products have a competitive acavgabbver
private label products primarily due to name redéogm In addition, when branded competitors foonsprice and
promotion, the environment for private label progiscbecomes more challenging because the pricdlifte
between private label products and branded prodauaectdecome less meaningful.

Competition to obtain shelf space for our brandextipcts with retailers is primarily based on theented or
historical performance of our product sales retativour competitors. The principal competitivetéas for sales of
our branded products to consumers are brand rei@myaind loyalty, product quality and price. Mo$oar branded
competitors have significantly greater resourcestaand recognition than we do.

Competitive pressures or other factors could cagde lose market share, which may require usweilgrices
increase marketing expenditures, or increase th@idiscounting or promotional programs, each liciv would
adversely affect our margins and could result deerease in our operating results and profitability

We may be unsuccessful in our future acquisitiondgavors, if any, which may have an adverse effatbaor
business.

Consistent with our stated strategy, our futuremginodepends, in large part, on our acquisitiondufigonal
food manufacturing businesses, products or prosessea result, we intend to engage in acquisgictivity. We
may be unable to identify suitable targets, oppustic or otherwise, for acquisition or make acdgigas at
favorable prices. If we identify a suitable acqfinsi candidate, our ability to successfully implerhthe acquisition
would depend on a variety of factors, including ahility to obtain financing on acceptable terms.

Acquisitions involve risks, including those asstethwith integrating the operations, financial rejng,
disparate technologies and personnel of acquiretbaaies; managing geographically dispersed opasgtibe
diversion of management’s attention from other hess concerns; the inherent risks in entering nsukeines of
business in which we have either limited or noaiexperience; unknown risks; and the potentia lufskey
employees, customers and strategic partners ofradogcompanies. We may not successfully integragéngsses or
technologies we acquire in the future and may obiewe anticipated revenue and cost
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benefits. Acquisitions may not be accretive to @amings and may negatively impact our resultgpefations as a
result of, among other things, the incurrence @itdene time write-offs of goodwill and amortizatiexpenses of
other intangible assets. In addition, future adtjaiss could result in dilutive issuances of equggcurities.

We may be unable to anticipate changes in consumeferences, which may result in decreased demaord f
our products.

Our success depends in part on our ability to goatie the tastes and eating habits of consumersoanifier
products that appeal to their preferences. Conspmederences change from time to time and our riaila
anticipate, identify or react to these changesaoesult in reduced demand for our products, whiohld adversely
affect our operating results and profitability.

We may be subject to product liability claims foighranded, adulterated, contaminated or spoileddoo
products.

We sell food products for human consumption, whitiolve risks such as product contamination or Isg@,
misbranding, product tampering, and other aduimatf food products. Consumption of a misbrandetijiterated,
contaminated or spoiled product may result in pesbdliness or injury. We could be subject to claior lawsuits
relating to an actual or alleged iliness or injuagd we could incur liabilities that are not ingliger that exceed our
insurance coverage. Even if product liability claiagainst us are not successful or fully pursireghe claims could
be costly and time consuming and may require manageto spend time defending the claims rather tmarating
our business. A product that has been actuall{legedly misbranded or becomes adulterated cosldtréen:
product withdrawals, product recalls, destructibproduct inventory, negative publicity, temporatgant closings,
and substantial costs of compliance or remedia#hory. of these events, including a significant prodiability
judgment against us, could result in a loss of icemice in our food products, which could have areegk effect ol
our financial condition, results of operations asl flows.

Our business could be harmed by strikes or workpgtages by our employees.

Currently, approximately 51% of our full time diswtion, production and maintenance employees avered
by collective bargaining agreements with the Iniional Brotherhood of Teamsters, United Food aoth@ercial
Workers Union, or Retail, Wholesale and Departn®&ote Union Central States Council. In additiorgragimately
25% of the labor force is covered by agreementsetk@ire within one year. If a dispute with onetloése unions or
the employees they represent were to arise, priaguictterruptions caused by work stoppages coutdiodf a
strike or work stoppage were to occur, our businf@sancial condition and results of operationslddae adversely
affected.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

We currently operate seventeen production fadglitiee majority of which are owned except for theilfty in
City of Industry, California, which is leased under agreement that expires in September 2016; #relbta,
lllinois facility, which is leased from Del MonteoBporation under an agreement that expires in A085; the
Springfield, Missouri facility, which is leased froBell Carter under an agreement that expires ig 209 and the
Cambridge, Ontario facility, which is leased undrragreement that expires in December 2009. Weueethat
these facilities are suitable for our operationd provide sufficient capacity to meet our requiretsdor the
foreseeable future. On November 3, 2008, the Cosnpanounced plans to
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close the Cambridge, Ontario production facilitydnyy 2009. The following chart lists the locatiand principal
products produced at our production facilities:

Facility Location Principal Products

Cambridge, Ontario, Cana Salad dressinc

City of Industry, Californie Mocha Mix®, Second Natur® and refrigerated salad dressit
Chicago, lllinois Refrigerated foodservice pickl:

Dixon, lllinois Aseptic cheese sauces, puddings and gri

Faison, North Carolin Pickles, peppers and relish; syl

Green Bay, Wisconsi Pickles, peppers, relish and sau

Mendota, Illinois Soups, broths, and gravi

New Hampton, low: Powders used for n-dairy creamers and other powdered prod
North East, Pennsylvan Salad dressinc

Pecatonica, lllinoi: Powders used for n-dairy creamer

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvan Soups, broths, and gravies; baby f

Plymouth, Indian: Pickles, peppers and reli

San Antonio, Texa Mexican sauce

Seaforth, Ontario, Canal Salad dressings, mayonna

Springfield, Missour Foodservice pickle

Wayland, Michigar Powders used for n-dairy creamers and other powdered prod
Winona, Ontario, Canac Jams, pie fillings and specialty sau

Research and Development

Our research facilities include a Research and Dpweent Center in Pecatonica, lllinois. The Cefdeuses
on the development of aseptic and powdered creproducts. Product development work for aseptic petslis
also carried out at our production facility in Dixdllinois. Research and development for our gghdoducts is
carried out at our production facility in Green B#yisconsin. We conduct research and developméivitas for
our soup and infant feeding products at our pradadacility in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. New forfations for
salad dressings are created at our Seaforth, Céo@ateon and new sauces and fruit based produetdeveloped :
our Winona, Canada facility. In addition, samplepgaration, plant trials, ingredient approval arfteouality
control procedures are conducted at all our manwfiag facilities. Research and development expéotséed
$6.9 million, $4.8 million, and $2.7 million in 2802007, and 2006, respectively, and is includethénGeneral and
administrative line of the Consolidated Statemefitcome.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are party to a variety of legal proceedingsragisut of the conduct of our business. While tbsuits of
proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty,agament believes that the final outcome of thesegadings wi
not have a material adverse effect on the Condelid@inancial Statements, annual results of operatr cash
flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Hold¢

No matter was submitted by us during the fourthrigwaf 2008 to a vote of security holders, throtigh
solicitation of proxies or otherwise.

10




Table of Contents

PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity
Securities

Our common stock is traded on the New York StockHaxge under the symbol “THSThe high and low sal
prices of our common stock as quoted on the Nevk Boock Exchange for 2008 and 2007 are providetertable

below
High Low
Year ended December 31, 2C
First Quarte! 24.8( 19.2¢
Second Quarte 27.01 21.8¢
Third Quartel 30.2¢  23.5¢
Fourth Quarte 31.61 20.4:
Year ended December 31, 2C
First Quartel 32.2: 27.51
Second Quarte 32.5¢ 25.6¢
Third Quartel 28.4t  21.3¢
Fourth Quarte 29.1t 21.1f

The closing sales price of our common stock on traatyr13, 2009 as reported on the NYSE, was $27e97 p
share. On February 13, 2009, there were 4,215 sbldexrs of record of our common stock.

We have not paid any cash dividends on the comnumk &nd currently anticipate that, for the foredde
future, any earnings will be retained for the depetent of our business. Accordingly, no dividendsexpected to
be declared or paid on the common stock. Moreauarrevolving credit facility contains certain néstions on our
ability to pay cash dividends. The declarationigfd&nds is at the discretion of our Board of Ditgs.

The Company did not purchase any shares of its @rstock in either 2008 or 2007.

11
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The price information reflected for our common &totthe following performance graph and accompagyi
table represents the closing sales prices of theran stock for the period from June 28, 2005 thhoug
December 31, 2008. The graph and accompanying ¢abi@are the cumulative total stockholders’ retmrour
common stock with the cumulative total return af 8&P Small Cap 600 Index, Russell 2000 Index aRdex
Group Index consisting of the following group ofhgpanies selected based on the similar nature oflibsiness:
Kraft Foods Inc., Sara Lee Corp., General Millg,.)iKellogg Co., ConAgra Foods Inc., Archer Danidislland
Co., H.J. Heinz Company, Campbell Soup Co., McCckrgi Co. Inc., The JM Smucker Co., Del Monte Fo@is,
Corn Products Int, Lancaster Colony Corp., Flowers Foods, InclcBa@ Holdings Inc., The Hain Celestial Groi
Inc., Lance, Inc., J&J Snack Foods Corp., B&G Fodas., American Italian Pasta Co., Farmer Bros. and Peet
Coffee and Tea. The graph assumes an investm&i06fon June 28, 2005, in each of TreeHouse Famasmon
stock, the stocks comprising the S&P Small Capl@@@éx, Russell 2000 Index and the Peer Group Index.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN OF $100 AMONG TREEHOUSE FOODS, INC.,
S&P SMALL CAP 600 INDEX, RUSSELL 2000 INDEX AND THE PEER GROUP INDEX

200

—{F TreeHouse Foods, Inc.
——  S&P SmallCap 600 Index
150 | —C— Russell 2000 Index
v —— Peer Giroup
z
[0
g I
§
A0
i T T T T T
G 28205 12/31/2005 1273172006 1253002007 [ 2312008
Base Indexed Returns
Period For Year Ended
Company Name / Inde; 6/28/0¢ 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0€ 12/31/07% 12/31/0¢
TreeHouse Foods, Inc 10C 63.1¢ 105.2¢ 77.5¢ 91.87
S&P SmallCap 600 Index 10C 105.9¢ 121.9¢ 121.6: 83.8:
Russell 2000 Inde> 10C 105.5¢ 124.9¢ 123.0: 78.7¢
Peer Group 10C 97.6¢ 122.37 130.2: 107.6

12
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information about @ammon stock that may be issued upon the exer€ise o
options under all of our equity compensation plan®f December 31, 2008:

(©

Number of Securities

(@) Remaining Available for
Number of Securities tc (b) Future Issuance Under
be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Equity Compensation
Exercise of Outstandin¢ Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding
Options, Warrants Outstanding Options. Securities Reflected ir
Plan Category and Rights Warrants and Rights Column(a))

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders
TreeHouse Foods, Inc. Equity a 2,612,05 % 27.21 474,15(
Incentive Plar
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders
None

Total 2,612,05- $ 27.2] 474,15(

13




Table of Contents

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected financial data as of anddach of the five years in the period ended Decerdbe2008
has been derived from the Consolidated Financatk8tents. The selected financial data do not putpandicate
results of operations as of any future date oafor future period. The selected financial data khba read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statete@nd related Notes. For periods prior to JunQ@@5, all of
the historical assets, liabilities, sales, expernsesme, cash flows, products, businesses anditiediof our
business that we describe in this report as “oars’in fact the historical assets, liabilitiesgsalexpenses, income,
cash flows, products, businesses and activitigheobusinesses transferred to TreeHouse by DeattsFoo

Operating data:
Net sales
Cost of sale:
Gross profit
Operating costs and expens
Selling and distributiol
General and administrati
Management fee paid to Dean Fo
Amortization of intangible:
Other operating (income) expense,
Total operating costs and expen
Operating incom
Other (income) expens
Interest expens
Interest incomt
Loss (gain) on foreign currency exchat
Other (income) expense, r

Total other expens

Income from continuing operations, before incomes:

Income taxe:
Income from continuing operatio

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neag

Net income

Basic earnings per common she
Income from continuing operatiol
Income (loss) from discontinued operati

Net income

Diluted earnings per common sha
Income from continuing operatiol
Income (loss) from discontinued operati

Net income

Weighted average common shai
Basic
Diluted

Other data:

Balance sheet data (at end of peri
Total asset
Long-term debt
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Total stockholder equity

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(In thousands, except per share date

$1,500,65! $1,157,90: $939,39¢ $707,73: $694,61¢
1,208,621 917,61: 738,81¢ 560,09 537,97(
292,02 240,29: 200,57¢ 147,63 156,64¢
115,73: 94,63¢ 74,88¢ 60,97¢ 61,48¢
61,74 53,93! 57,91« 31,97 11,02(
— — — 2,94( 11,10¢
13,52¢ 7,19¢ 3,26¢ 1,732 1,47
13,89¢ (415) (19,84%) 21,42 —
204,89¢ 155,34° 116,22 119,04¢ 85,08!
87,12¢ 84,94+ 84,354 28,58¢ 71,56¢
27,61« 22,03¢ 12,98¢ 1,227 71C
(207) (112 (665) (7) —
13,04( (3,469 — — —
7,128 (36) — (66) 11€
47,67( 18,41¢ 12,32( 1,15( 82€
39,45¢ 66,52¢ 72,03¢ 27,43¢ 70,74
10,89t 24,87: 27,33 15,17« 26,07
28,56( 41,652 44,70 12,26 44,67
(336) (30 15E (689 (9,595
$ 2822« $ 4162 $ 44,85t $ 1157¢ $ 35,07¢
$ 91 $ 132 $ 14 $ 4C $  1.4:
(.01) — .01 (.02) (.32)
$ 9C $ 132 $ 144 $ 38 $ 114
$ 91 $ 132 $ 14z $ 3¢ $ 144
(.01) — .01 (.02) (.32)
$ 9C $ 132 $ 14 § 37 $ 1148
31,34 31,20:¢ 31,15¢ 30,90¢ 30,80:
31,46¢ 31,35! 31,39¢ 31,10¢ 31,06(
$1,355,68; $1,455,95 $935,62! $609,69° $632,92:
475,23: 620,45: 239,11! 6,14¢ 28,29¢
44 ,56: 33,91 26,52( 18,90¢ 20,53¢
620,13: 629,30¢ 576,24 513,35! 494,75!

14
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations
Executive Overview

We believe we are the largest manufacturer of aainy powdered creamer and pickles in the UnitedeSt an
the largest manufacturer of private label saladgings in the United States and Canada, basedtofbisales
volumes. We believe we are also the leading rptaikte label supplier of non-dairy powdered cregreeup and
pickles in the United States, and jams in Canad20D8, based on information provided by AC Nie]gmivate
label products sold in the retail grocery channehie United States, which compete with brandedyxts on the
basis of equivalent quality at a lower price, reprged approximately 36% of all pickle productgragimately
54% of all non-dairy powdered creamer and approteipa 6% of all canned soup.

We sell our products primarily to the retail grocand foodservice channels. For the year endedrbleee31,
2008, sales to the retail grocery and foodsenii@mnels represented 61.1% and 19.6%, respectfedyr
consolidated net sales. The remaining 19.3% repredéndustrial and export sales. A majority of eales are
private label products.

The following discussion and analysis presentddhtors that had a material effect on our resulgperations
for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 angl. 2060 discussed is our financial position, ashefend of
those periods. This should be read in conjunctiih the Consolidated Financial Statements and thied\to those
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsesvimethis report. This Management’s Discussion Andlysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations dostéorward-looking statements. See “Cautionaryesteent
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” for a disimrssf the uncertainties, risks and assumptionsaated with
these statements.

The Company completed its annual assessment ofrdibadd indefinite lived assets as of DecemberZ10)8
and did not have goodwill impairment. The Compaitytdhve impairment of our San Antonio Farfitsade name
totaling approximately $0.6 million, which is regatto the North American Retail Grocery segmentolter
impairment was noted. For a more detailed desonf the results of our analysis and the relasstiaptions, see
our “Critical Accounting Policies.”

General economic conditions deteriorated througR608 and resulted in rising commaodity prices, the
tightening of credit markets, job losses, fluctngtinterest rates and foreign exchange rates. Thesa's have
impacted the Company and its comparisons to thétseschieved in 2007 and will impact the Company’s
expectations for 2009.

The acquisition landscape in 2008 was negativepaitted by high seller price expectations, tightgmiredit a
high borrowing costs and a more limited field ofqraial acquirers. We expect to be active in expandur
business through acquisitions as soon as conditiopve.

The Companys exposure to foreign exchange rates is primdriitéd to the Canadian dollar. During 2008,
exchange rate between the United States and Careleelatively consistent, until later in the yeahen the
U.S. dollar strengthened. The strengthening oftI& dollar has resulted in significant other coeffgmsive losses
due to the change in foreign exchange rates. Atgacted are the line items in the Company’s Codatdd
Statements of Income. If the U.S. dollar had narejthened as it did during 2008, the Company’salets and
profits from its Canadian subsidiary would haverbgeeater.

15
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Results of Operations

The following table presents certain informatiomcerning our financial results, including infornuati
presented as a percentage of consolidated net sales

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Dollars  Percent Dollars Percent Dollars  Percent
(Dollars in thousands)
Net sales $1,500,65¢ 100.% $1,157,90. 100.% $939,39¢ 100.(%
Cost of sale: 1,208,621  80.t 917,61: 79.2 738,81¢ 78.7
Gross profi 292,02: 19.5 240,29: 20.¢ 200,57¢ 21.:
Operating costs and expens
Selling and distributiol 115,73: 7.7 94,63¢ 8.2 74,88¢ 8.C
General and administrativ
Stock-based compensatic 12,19: 0.8 13,58( 1.2 18,79¢ 2.C
Other general and administrati 49,54¢ 3.4 40,35: 3.E 39,12( 4.2
Total general and administrati 61,741 4.2 53,93: 4.7 57,91« 6.2
Amortization expens 13,52¢ 0.c 7,19t 0.€ 3,26¢ 0.2
Other operating (income) expense, 13,89¢ 0.6 (415) — (19,847) (2.2)
Total operating costs and expen 204,89¢ 13.7 155,34" 13.5 116,22« 12.2
Total operating incom 87,12t 5.8 84,94« 7.3 84,35¢ 9.C
Other (income) expens
Interest expens 27,61« 1.8 22,03¢ 1. 12,98t iL.g
Interest income (207) — (112 — (665 —
Loss (gain) on foreign currency exchatr 13,04( 0.c (3,469 (0.2 — —
Other (income) expense, r 7,12¢ 0.5 (36) — — —
Total other expens 47,67( 3.2 18,41¢ 1.€ 12,32( 1.3
Income from continuing operations, before incomes: 39,45t 2.€ 66,52¢ 5.7 72,03¢ 7.7
Income taxe: 10,89¢ 0.7 24,87 2.1 27,33 2.8
Income from continuing operatiol 28,56( 1.€ 41,65: 3.€ 44,701 4.8
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neagf
expense (benefit) of $(213), $(19) and $95, respept (33€) — (30) — 15E —
Net income $ 28,22¢ 1% $ 41,62 3.€% $ 44,85¢ 4.8%

Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to Year Efdlecember 31, 2007

Net Sales— Net sales increased 29.6% to $1,500.7 milliontierytear ended December 31, 2008, compar
$1,157.9 million, for the year ended December 8D72 Net sales by segment are shown in the follguable:

Consolidated Net Sale:

Year Ended December 31, $Increase % Increase;
2008 2007 (Decrease (Decrease)
(Dollars in thousands)
North American Retail Grocel $ 917,10 $ 663,50t $253,59¢ 38.2%
Food Away From Hom 294,02( 254,58 39,44( 15.t
Industrial and Expot 289,52¢ 239,81¢ 49,71 20.7
Total $1,500,65( $1,157,90. $342,74 29.€%
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The increase in net sales is primarily due to thieybar impact in 2008 of the 2007 acquisitiond€dDd. Smith
and San Antonio Farms along with price increaskesnto offset rising input costs, which were pdistiaffset by
volume decreases in the North American Retail Gyoaad Food Away From Home segments. Volume deeseas
were primarily in the pickle and non-dairy powdesamer businesses, reflecting the Company’s decisionove
away from low margin customers and the impact efslowing global economy.

Cost of Sales— All expenses incurred to bring a product to céatipn are included in cost of sales, such as
raw material, ingredient and packaging costs, laosts, facility and equipment costs, includingtsds operate ar
maintain our warehouses, and costs associatednaitbporting our finished products from our mantifeing
facilities to our own distribution centers. Costsales as a percentage of consolidated net salessed to 80.5%
2008 from 79.2% in the prior year. Significant renaterial cost increases in 2008 include a 43% as@én casein,
a 39% increase in oils, an 11% increase in swertemal an 8% increase in cucumber crop costs. Bickaost
increases include a 21% increase in plastic coatsiand a 12% increase in glass containers. Wénocewtto
experience increased raw material and packaging tust we were able to partially offset with iresed operating
efficiencies and increases in the prices of oudpots. See — “Results by Segment.”

Operating Costs and Expenses Operating expenses increased to $204.9 milhid2008 compared to
$155.3 million in 2007. The increase in 2008 resiifrom the following:

Selling and distribution expenses increased $21lliom primarily due to the full year impact in 28 of the
acquisitions of San Antonio Farms in May, 2007 &rid. Smith in October, 2007.

General and administrative expenses increasedndili8n in 2008 compared to 2007, due to the adtjars of
San Antonio Farms, in May 2007 and E.D. Smith inober 2007. However, due to synergies realizedegand
administrative costs as a percent of revenue dsedeiaom 4.7% in 2007 to 4.2% in 2008.

Amortization expenses increased to $13.5 millio2008 from $7.2 million in 2007, due to the fullayampact
in 2008 of the acquisition of the San Antonio Faimthe second quarter of 2007 and the acquisdfda.D. Smith
in the fourth quarter of 2007.

Other operating expense in 2008 increased $141®mgrimarily due to the closing of our pickle ptdocated
in Portland, Oregon.

Operating Income— Operating income in 2008 was $87.1 million, mcréase of $2.2 million, or 2.6% from
operating income of $84.9 million in 2007. Our agtérg margin was 5.8% in 2008 compared to 7.3%072 The
impact of the Portland plant closure on operatiraggim for 2008 was a reduction of 0.9%.

Other (income) expense Sther (income) expense includes interest expensaeist income, foreign exchange
gains and losses, and other (income) and expenses.

Interest expense in 2008 was $27.6 million, aneiase of $5.6 million from 2007. The increase imprily due
to increased debt levels resulting from our 20Qjuagitions. The increase in interest expense wéagaed, as the
Company paid down debt during the year and inteetss lowered. Interest income in 2008 and 2005 wa
$0.1 million.

The impact of changes in foreign currency restuitbegh expense of $13.0 million in 2008 versus a ak2007
of $3.5 million. In 2008, approximately $9.1 milli®f the foreign currency expense was due to thalwation of ar
intercompany note. The remaining $3.9 million afeign currency expense is primarily due to a felhyof foreign
currency transaction gains and losses occurri@@8. The gain in 2007 was primarily due to theviand purchase
of Canadian currency used in the 2007 acquisitida.D. Smith. This did not repeat in 2008.
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Other (income) expense was a loss of $7.1 millimRd08 versus a gain of $36 thousand in 2007. itrease
is primarily related to the mark to market adjustingf our interest rate swap agreement, totalimg@gmately
$7.0 million.

Income Taxes— Income tax expense was recorded at an efferdiecof 27.6% for 2008 compared to 37.4%
for 2007. The lower effective tax rate in 2008 igedo the favorable intercompany financing struetemtered into i
conjunction with the E.D. Smith acquisition (Seet®8), combined with the tax benefit of the markrarket
adjustment of our interest rate swap agreement.

Discontinued operations— Our loss on discontinued operations was $0.8aniln 2008 versus $30 thousand
in 2007. The increase of $0.3 million was due ®mite off of assets held for sale during 2008e Tompany was
unable to locate a buyer for these assets anddtasmined they have no value.

Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to Year Eridlecember 31, 2007 — Results by Segment

North American Retail Grocery

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007
Dollars Percent Dollars Percent
(Dollars in thousands)
Net sales $917,10: 100.(% $663,50¢ 100.(%
Cost of sale: 720,38t 78.€ 509,30t 76.€
Gross profit 196,71- 21.4 154,19¢ 23.2
Freight out and commissiol 58,75¢ 6.4 45,13¢ 6.8
Direct selling and marketin 23,44 2.€ 23,765 3.5
Direct operating incom $114,51: 12.4% $ 85,29: 12.%

Net sales in the North American Retail Grocery seghincreased by $253.6 million, or 38.2%, for ylear
ended December 31, 2008 compared to the prior yéarchange in net sales from 2007 to 2008 wagalthe

following:
Dollars Perceni
(Dollars in
thousands)
2007 Net sale $663,50¢
Volume (32,019 (4.9%
Mix/other (1,249 (0.2
Acquisitions 240,16¢ 36.2
Pricing 46,69: 7.C
2008 Net sale $917,10: 38.2%

The increase in net sales from 2007 to 2008 redutt@inly from the full year impact in 2008 of theqaisition
of San Antonio Farms in the second quarter of 208@¥ E.D. Smith in the fourth quarter of 2007. Piicereases
taken due to rising raw material and packagingscogire than offset lower case sales of baby fodd etfail
branded pickles. The volume declines related wilrpickle low margin customer rationalization amdecline in
branded baby food.

Cost of sales as a percentage of sales increasad/8.8% in 2007 to 78.6% in 2008 primarily as suteof
input cost increases throughout 2008 which werduilyt offset by price increases.

Freight out and commissions paid to independerkdssincreased $13.6 million or 30.2%, to $58.8iamilin
2008 compared to $45.1 million in 2007, as a resfulhcreased sales and higher shipping costs pitimue to
elevated fuel costs early in 2008.
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Food Away From Home

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007
Dollars Percent Dollars Percent
(Dollars in thousands)

Net sales $294,02( 100.% $254,58(  100.(%
Cost of sale: 242,03! 82.% 209,92° 82.t
Gross profit 51,98t 17.7 44,65 17.5
Freight out and commissiol 13,561 4.€ 10,93: 4.3
Direct selling and marketin 6,28¢ 2.2 5,401 2.1
Direct operating incom $ 32,130 10.% $ 28,32( 11.1%

Net sales in the Food Away From Home segment isectay $39.4 million, or 15.5%, for the year ended
December 31, 2008 compared to the prior year. Tihage in net sales from 2007 to 2008 was due téotloaving:

Dollars Perceni
(Dollars in
thousands)
2007 Net sale $254,58(
Volume (16,949 (6.71%
Mix/other 5,97 2.4
Acquisitions 32,52¢ 12.¢
Pricing 17,88 7.C
2008 Net sale $294,02( 15.5%

Sales increased in 2008 compared to 2007 primdwiéyto the acquisitions of San Antonio Farms in @97,
and the E.D. Smith acquisition in October 2007c®mmcreases taken in 2008 to offset rising inpstEalso
contributed to the increase. Volume declined atipany moved away from low margin pickle custaraard
experienced adverse economic conditions in the Peealy From Home industry in 2008.

Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales dedrizase82.5% in 2007 to 82.3% in 2008, as pricaeases to
our customers offset increases in raw materialkggiag, and energy costs, combined with improvemant
operating efficiencies.

Freight out and commissions paid to independerkdysincreased $2.6 million or 24.1% to $13.6 wilin
2008 compared to $10.9 million in 2007, primarisyaresult of the higher sales and increased stgppists due to
elevated fuel costs early in 2008.

Industrial and Export

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007
Dollars Percent Dollars Percent
(Dollars in thousands)

Net sales $289,52¢ 100.(% $239,81¢ 100.(%
Cost of sale: 246,20 85.C 198,37t 82.7
Gross profit 43,32¢ 15.C 41,44( 17.c
Freight out and commissiol 8,821 3.C 7,97¢ 3.3
Direct selling and marketin 1,031 0.4 761 0.4
Direct operating incom $ 33,47 11.€% $ 32,70: 13.6%
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Net sales in the Industrial and Export segmeneiased by $49.7 million, or 20.7%, for the year ende
December 31, 2008 compared to the prior year. Tihage in net sales from 2007 to 2008 was due téotloaving:

Dollars Perceni

(Dollars in thousands)
2007 Net sale $239,81t¢
Volume 13,96( 5.8%
Mix/other (12,41°) (5.2
Acquisitions 3,31« 1.4
Pricing 44,85t 18.7
2008 Net sale $289,52¢ 20.7%

Price increases were taken in 2008 in an effoofffiget the significant increases in input costsadidition, we
realized volume increases during the year fromettisting customer base.

Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales incré@ase 82.7% in 2007 to 85.0% in 2008 as priceeases to
our customers did not fully offset increases in raaterials and packaging costs. Also contributimthe increase
was a shift in our mix of customers towards lowergin co-pack customers.

Freight out and commissions paid to independerikdysoincreased by $0.8 million to $8.8 million agault of
increased fuel costs early in 2008. However, tlvesés decreased as a percent of revenue from 8.220i7 to
3.0% in 2008 due to combining shipments and levegafyeight rates with the other product lines.

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Erdleckmber 31, 2006

Net Sales— Net sales increased approximately 23.3% to ¥19A/illion for the year ended December 31,
2007, compared to $939.4 million for the year enBedember 31, 2006. Net sales by segment are simotlve
following table:

Consolidated Net Sale:
Year Ended December 31 $Increase % Increase;

2007 2006 (Decrease (Decrease’
(Dollars in thousands)
North American Retail Grocel $ 663,50t $502,78  $160,71! 32.(%
Food Away From Hom 254,58( 240,77¢ 13,80: 5.7
Industrial and Expot 239,81t 195,83: 43,98¢ 22.t
Total $1,157,90; $939,39¢ $218,50t 23.5%

The increase in net sales was primarily drivenhgyfull year impact in 2007 of the acquisition loé tSoup and
Infant Feeding Business in the second quarter 66 20hd the acquisitions of San Antonio Farms in [26§7 and
E.D. Smith in October 2007. Sales increases walizesl in all segments in 2007 as we increaseeéptic pass
along the effect of increased input costs to ostamers.

Cost of Sales— All expenses incurred to bring a product to céatipn are included in cost of sales, such as
raw materials, ingredient and packaging costs,rlabsts, facility and equipment costs, includingtedo operate
and maintain our warehouses, and costs associdtedansporting our finished products from our matturing
facilities to our own distribution centers. Costsales as a percentage of consolidated net salessed to 79.2%
2007 from 78.7% in the prior year. Significant renaterial cost increases in 2007 included a 31%eam® in
sweeteners, a 27% increase in oils, an 11% incieasesein and a 7% increase in cucumber crop.d@atkaging
cost increases include an 8% in corrugated contanféset by a 4% decrease in plastic containees cahtinued to
experience increased raw material and packaging tust we were able to partially offset with iresed operating
efficiencies and increases in the prices of oudpots. See — “Results by Segment.”
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Operating Costs and Expenses Operating expenses increased to $155.3 milha2007 compared to
$116.2 million in 2006. The increase in 2007 resifrom the following:

Selling and distribution expenses increased $191&m primarily due to the full year impact in 2@ of the
acquisition of the Soup and Infant Feeding Businetéch occurred the second quarter of 2006, aadtguisition
of San Antonio Farms in May 2007 and E.D. Smit®ttober 2007. Selling and distribution expenses psrcent
of revenue increased from 8.0% in 2006 to 8.2%0@72 primarily as a result of higher sales volume average
fuel costs.

General and administrative expenses decreasedr#fidh in 2007 compared to 2006, primarily for the
following reasons: (1) the reduction of stock-basedhpensation expense of $5.2 million due to gradsting
which front loads the expense in earlier yeargeél#o equity grants to senior management at the ¢f the
distribution and (2) the reduction of professiofess associated with Sarbar@sley compliance of $1.4 million a
(3) the reduction of pension administrative experafe$0.7 million. The previous year incurred highgpenses, di
to the initial compliance effort required for Trealibe as a public company. These reductions wetialpaoffset by
additional costs related to the acquisitions madend the year.

Amortization expenses increased to $7.2 millio@®07 from $3.3 million in 2006, due to the full gt in
2007 of the acquisition of the Soup and Infant g usiness which occurred in the second quaft2006, the
acquisition of San Antonio Farms in the second tguarf 2007, and the acquisition of E.D. Smithha fourth
quarter of 2007.

Other operating income in 2007 decreased $19.4omitlue to several non-recurring items which ocediin
2006. In 2007, we recognized a gain on the satedhin assets related to the La Junta, Coloradlityaof
$0.3 million.

Other operating expense in 2006 includes a $29lbmcurtailment gain generated as a result aigfarring
the postretirement medical benefits of certain nremployees from a company funded plan to a mufileyer
union sponsored plan. In 2006, we also recordegBah million charge to write down tidocha Mix® trademark to
reflect a reduction in its realizable value. The2b®illion charge is related to the North Ameridaetail Grocery
segment. Also included in 2006 is the income fromdale of the La Junta, Colorado distribution eeaf
$1.3 million, offset by $2.6 million of costs assted with the closing of the La Junta, Coloraduliges.

Operating Income— Operating income in 2007 was $84.9 million, acréase of $0.6 million, or 0.7% from
operating income of $84.4 million in 2006, largaly a result of solid operating results and thecefiéthe
acquisitions in 2006 and 2007, which offset the.$28illion curtailment gain of postretirement betsefecorded in
2006. Our operating margin was 7.3% in 2007 as evetpto 9.0% in the prior year.

Other (income) expense Sther (income) expense includes interest expensaeist income, foreign exchange
gains and losses, and other (income) and expenses.

Interest expense in 2007 was $22.0 million, aneiase of $9.1 million from 2006. The increase imprily due
to increased debt levels resulting from our 20Qyuésitions.

Interest income in 2007 was $0.1 million versug$illion in 2006. Interest income in 2006 was thsult of
investment income.

The impact of changes in foreign currency resduitteal gain in 2007 of $3.5 million, primarily due tioe
forward purchase of Canadian currency used in @& Zacquisition of E.D. Smith.

Income Taxes— Income tax expense was recorded at an efferdbecof 37.4% for 2007 compared to 37.9%
for 2006. The decrease is primarily due to the low&® rate on the Canadian operations of E.D. Smith

Discontinued operations -Our loss on discontinued operations was $30 thalisa®007 versus a gain of $1
thousand in 2006 due to the sale of assets in 2006.
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Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Efdleckmber 31, 200— Results by Segmel
North American Retail Grocery

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006
Dollars Percent Dollars Percent
(Dollars in thousands)

Net sales $663,50t  100.% $502,78°  100.(%
Cost of sale: 509,30t 76.€ 386,17¢ 76.€
Gross profit 154,19¢ 23.2 116,60t 23.2
Freight out and commissiol 45,13¢ 6.8 33,08: 6.€
Direct selling and marketin 23,76’ 3.5 11,957 2.4
Direct operating incom $ 85,29! 12.% $ 71,57( 14.2%

Net sales in the North American Retail Grocery seghincreased by $160.7 million, or 32.0% for tkeary
ended December 31, 2007 compared to the prior y&archange in net sales was due to the following:

Dollars Percent
(Dollars in
thousands)
2006 Net sale $502,78°
Volume (7,942 (1.€)%
Mix/other (12,389 (2.2
Acquisitions 161,94: 32.2
Pricing 18,10: 3.6
2007 Net sale $663,50¢ 32.(%

The increase in net sales from 2006 to 2007 retpitienarily from the full year impact on sales frahe Soup
and Infant Feeding acquisition in 2006 and the &itipns of San Antonio Farms in May 2007 and EShith in
October 2007. Price increases were taken in thansidealf of 2007, due to rising raw material, pagkg and
natural gas costs.

Cost of sales increased from $386.2 million in 2696509.3 million in 2007 primarily as a result of
acquisitions, as cost of sales as a percentaget glafes was the same as in 2006.

Freight out and commissions paid to independerkdysincreased $12.1 million or 36.4%, to $45.liatilin
2007 compared to $33.1 million in 2006 as a resfudtcquisitions and increased volume, as a pergerdfinet sale
freight out and commissions remained consisterit @06 levels.

Food Away From Home

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006
Dollars Percent Dollars Percent
(Dollars in thousands)

Net sales $254,58(  100.9%6 $240,77¢ 100.(%
Cost of sale: 209,92° 82.t 194,09: 80.€
Gross profit 44,65: 17.5 46,68t 19.4
Freight out and commissiol 10,93 4.3 12,31¢ 5.1
Direct selling and marketin 5,401 2.1 3,801 1.€
Direct operating incom $ 28,32( 11.1% $ 30,56( 12.7%
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Net sales of the Food Away From Home segment iseitay $13.8 million, or 5.7%, for the year ended
December 31, 2007 compared to the prior year. Tihage in net sales was due to the following;

Dollars Percent
(Dollars in
thousands)
2006 Net sale $240,77¢
Volume (4,919 (2.0%
Mix/other (4,299 (1.8
Acquisitions 20,28’ 8.4
Pricing 2,72 1.1
2007 Net sale $254,58( 5.7%

The increase in net sales from 2006 to 2007 respitienarily from the full year impact on sales frahe Soup
and Infant Feeding acquisition in 2006 and the &itipns of San Antonio Farms in May 2007 and EShith in
October 2007 and price increases taken in the gdtalfi of 2007 due to rising raw material, packggamd natural
gas costs. Volume declined as the Company movesg &roma certain low margin customers.

Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales indré@ase 80.6% in 2006 to 82.5% in 2007, as priceégases to
our customers only partially offset increases im raaterial, packaging, and energy costs, combirniéd w
improvements in operating efficiencies.

Freight out and commissions paid to independerkdysodecreased $1.4 million to $10.9 million in 200
compared to $12.3 million in 2006. Freight out @edhmissions as a percentage of net sales decrase8.1% in
2006 compared to 4.3% in 2007, as a result of betémagement of customer shipments.

Industrial and Export

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006
Dollars Percent Dollars Percent
(Dollars in thousands)

Net sales $239,81¢  100.(% $195,83. 100.(%
Cost of sale: 198,37t 82.7 158,54 81.C
Gross profit 41,44( 17.2 37,28 19.C
Freight out and commissiol 7,97¢ 3.3 7,54t 3.6
Direct selling and marketin 761 0.4 665 0.3
Direct operating incom $ 32,70! 13.6% $ 29,07 14.6%

Net sales of the Industrial and Export segmeneiased by $44.0 million, or 22.5%, for the year ende
December 31, 2007 compared to the prior year. Tihage in net sales was due to the following:

Dollars Percent
(Dollars in thousands;
2006 Net sale $195,83:
Volume 1,812 0.€%
Mix/other 12,22: 6.3
Acquisitions 16,88¢ 8.€
Pricing 13,06 6.7
2007 Net sale $239,81¢ 22.5%

The increase in net sales from 2006 to 2007 regpitenarily from acquisition of the soup @ack business al
price increases in 2007 due to rising input costs.
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Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales indré@ase 81.0% in 2006 to 82.7% in 2007, as priceégases to
our customers did not fully offset increases in raaterial, packaging, and energy costs, combindul wi
improvements in operating efficiencies.

Freight out and commissions paid to independerkdysincreased $0.4 million to $8.0 million in 2007
compared to $7.5 million in 2006, primarily dueattquisitions. Freight out and commissions as agméage of net
sales decreased from 3.9% in 2006 compared to B13907, as a result of a change in the mix of gihip methods
towards customer provided freight.

Known Trends and Uncertainties
Prices of Raw Materials

We were adversely affected by rising input costsndu2008 and 2007, and we expect our financiallteso be
affected by fluctuating input costs throughout 2009

Many of the raw materials used in our products tosgnusually high levels during 2008, includinggessed
vegetables and meats, soybean oil, casein, chedgeaakaging materials. Fluctuating fuel costsadge impacting
our results. While prices for many of our raw miatsrdecreased from their historic highs reachelieedhis year,
the Company expects moderate price volatility far mext year with an upward trend. We manage tipadéty
wherever possible, by locking in prices on quagditiequired to meet our production requirementadtfition, we
offset the effect by raising prices to our custanétowever, for competitive reasons, we may natlile to pass
along the full effect of increases in raw materatsl other input costs as we incur them. In additio instances of
declining input costs, customers may be lookingpitce reductions in situations where we have Iddkéo pricing
at higher costs.

Competitive Environment

There has been significant consolidation in thairgrocery and foodservice industries in recemtrgeand
mass merchandisers are gaining market share. Asustomer base continues to consolidate, we exjpeapetition
to intensify as we compete for the business of felaege customers. There can be no assurancevéhaill be able
to keep our existing customers, or gain new custenfes the consolidation of the retail grocery #maoldservice
industry continues, we could lose sales if any @neore of our existing customers were to be sold.

Both the difficult economic environment and thergrassed competitive environment at the retail adiservice
levels have caused competition to become increlgsimggnse in our business. We expect this trencbtdinue for
the foreseeable future.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Management assesses the Company'’s liquidity ingefiits ability to generate cash to fund its ofiata
investing and financing activities. The Companytoures to generate substantial cash from operatitigities and
remains in a strong financial position, with resmsg available for reinvestment in existing busiaesacquisitions
and managing its capital structure on a short and-term basis. Over the most recent three yedogehe
Company has generated $331.7 million in cash flmmfoperating activities. We use this source afitigy to
finance acquisitions, pay down outstanding deld,fand our annual capital expenditures. Managenmentased it
focus on working capital management and has takeors to reduce inventories and drive incremecdsh flow. I
additional borrowing is needed to finance futurguasitions, approximately $219.4 million was avhi®@on the
revolving credit facility as of December 31, 2008is facility expires in 2011. We believe that, givour cash flow
from operating activities and our available credipacity, we can comply with the current termshef ¢redit facility
and meet foreseeable financial requirements.

The Company believes it has sufficient liquiditydadoes not anticipate a significant risk to caskw in the
foreseeable future despite the current disruptfdhecredit markets, because the Company operates
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relatively stable industry and has sizable markates across its product lines. Our long-term fimagoeeds will
depend largely on potential acquisition activity.

The impact of the reduction in equity values of $keck market has resulted in a reduced fundedbelaf our
Pension Plan, and will require additional cash igbations, which we expect to fund by cash flowanfroperations.
The Company expects to make contributions of apprately $7.0 million in 2009.

Sources of Capita

Revolving Credit Facility— On August 30, 2007, the Company entered into #aneent No. 2 to our
unsecured revolving Credit Agreement, as amended‘@redit Agreement”), dated June 27, 2005, witraup of
participating financial institutions. Among othéirigs, Amendment No. 2 reduces the available ligpid
requirement with respect to permitted acquisitiand reduces the required consolidated interestrageeatio at th
end of each fiscal quarter. The Company also eseddis option under the Credit Agreement to ineeeae
aggregate commitments under the revolving creditifia from $500 million to $600 million. The Credhgreement
also provides for a $75 million letter of credibfimit, against which $8.6 million in letters ofeatit have been
issued but undrawn. Proceeds from the credit fgaitiay be used for working capital and general omafe
purposes, including acquisition financing. The aréatility contains various financial and othestéctive
covenants and requires that we maintain certaanfiral ratios, including a leverage and interesecage ratio. We
are in compliance with all applicable covenantsfadecember 31, 2008.

During 2008, the Company entered into a $200 nmillang-term interest rate swap agreement with &cede
date of November 19, 2008 to lock into a fixed LIB@nterest rate base. Under the terms of the agreem
$200 million in floating rate debt was swappedddixed rate of 2.9% interest rate base for a pleoici24 months,
amortizing to $50 million for an additional nine nths at the same 2.9% interest rate. The Compahyatiapply
hedge accounting and recorded the fair value efittstrument on its balance sheet within other l@ng liabilities.
The fair value of the swap, using Level 2 inputaswa liability of approximately $7.0 million. Thee@pany
recorded the expense related to the mark to madjestment of $7.0 million within the Other (incopexpense lin
of the Consolidated Statements of Income.

On September 22, 2006, we completed a private pleweof $100 million in aggregate principal of
6.03% senior notes due September 30, 2013 purtmaritiote Purchase Agreement among TreeHouse gralip
of purchasers. All of the Company’s obligations @nthe senior notes are fully and unconditionaliggnteed by
Bay Valley Foods, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiarytioé Company. The senior notes have not been eeggst
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, amdmat be offered or sold in the United States abssgistration
or an applicable exemption. Net proceeds were tesegpay outstanding indebtedness under the rexgpRredit
Agreement. We are in compliance with all applicaidgenants as of December 31, 2008.

Seasonality

Our short-term financing needs are primarily foraficing working capital during the year. Due to the
seasonality of cucumber and fruit production dritigrharvest cycles, which occur primarily during gpring and
summer, inventories generally are at a low poirafa spring and at a high point during the faltreasing our
working capital requirements. In addition, we buigentories of soup in the summer months in goditton of large
seasonal shipments that begin late in the thirdtqua
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Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 28,22: $41,62: $44,85¢
Loss (income) from discontinued operatic 33€ 30 (155
Depreciation & amortizatio 45,85 34,98¢ 24,65!
Stocl-based compensatic 12,19: 13,58( 18,79«
Loss on foreign currency exchar 9,03¢ — —
Mark to market adjustment on interest sv 6,981 — —
Gain on disposition of asse (469 (49¢) (728)
Write-down of impaired asse 5,991 — 8,20(
Deferred income taxe 5,31« 5,94( 12,96«
Curtailment of postretirement benefit obligat — — (29,409
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, natqtiisitions 62,42¢ 611 (19,37¢)
Other (240) 161 53
Net cash provided by continuing operatit 175,64t 96,43: 59,85(
Net cash provided by discontinued operati (10) (30 (2249)
Net cash provided by operating activit $175,63¢ $96,40: $ 59,62¢

Our cash from operations increased from $96.4 onilin 2007 to $175.6 million in 2008, primarily dteean
aggressive effort at reducing our working capit@ieistment. Significant improvements were made byagang botl
inventories, a $70.5 million improvement compae@®07, and accounts payable, a $22.3 million imgmuent
compared to 2007.

Year Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Additions to property, plant and equipmi $(55,47) $ (19,819 $ (11,379
Insurance procee( 12,045 — —
Cash outflows for acquisitions and investments tesh acquire (257) (449,93) (287,70)
Proceeds from sale of fixed ass 1,67¢ 1,46¢ 2,15(
Net cash used in continuing operatit (41,99¢) (468,28¢) (296,929
Net cash provided by discontinued operati 157 467 147
Net cash used in investing activiti $(41,839 $(467,819) $(296,779)

In 2008, cash used in investing activities decredsye$426.0 million from 2007, when we acquired ESmith
and San Antonio Farms. Capital additions were $85lion in 2008, compared to $22.9 million in 20@Zapital
spending in 2008 included plant efficiencies andgrages to our Pittsburgh plant water and poweesyst capacity
expansion at our North East, Pennsylvania facitépair of New Hampton, lowa facility, which wasndaged by
fire in February of 2008, and purchase of a Comgarplane. The expenditures related to the New Hampowa
facility were partially offset by proceeds receivfieam the resulting insurance claim.

We expect capital spending programs to be $35.0omin 2009. Capital spending in 2009 will focus o
productivity improvements and expansion at our N&ast, Pennsylvania and Pittsburgh plants andneut
equipment upgrades or replacements at all of @mtg] which number 17 across the United State<Candda.
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Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of d $ —  $440,03! $ 350,00(
Net repayment of del (145,53) (59,150 (120,36
Payments of deferred financing co — (230 (2,587
Excess tax benefits from stc-based payment arrangeme 377 — 624
Proceeds from stock option exerci: 5,434 44 1,482
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $(139,72¢) $380,69¢ $ 229,15

Net cash used in financing activities changed feo$880.7 million source of funds in 2007 to a $Z34illion
use of funds in 2008. In 2007, we borrowed $44Gl0am, primarily to finance the E.D. Smith and SAntonio
Farms acquisitions. In 2008, we did not completgaaquisitions and used the cash flow generatgayodown our
outstanding debt.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our obligations anthmitments to make future payments as of Dece@ber

2008:
Payments Due by Perioc

Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than

Indebtedness, Purchase & Lease Obligatio Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(In thousands)

Revolving credit facility (1’ $389,85¢ $ 6,69¢ $383,16( $ — 3 —
Senior notes(2 130,15( 6,03( 12,06( 112,06( —
Capital lease obligations(: 86¢€ 32C 362 13C 54
Purchasing obligations(: 170,59° 157,91( 9,094 2,93¢ 657
Operating leases(! 34,77¢ 11,07: 14,68 7,73 1,28¢
Benefit obligations(6 25,77 1,58¢ 4,05( 4,89 15,24
Deferred compensation( 3,65( 127 25¢ 1,001 2,26¢
FIN 48 liability(8) 57¢ — 57¢ — —
Total $756,24: $183,74. $424,24( $128,75: $ 19,50¢

(1) Revolving credit facility obligation includes pripal of $372.0 million and interest at an averaate of 1.80%
at December 31, 2008. The principal is due AugisB11. (See Note 1!

(2) Senior note obligation includes principal and iattpayments based on a fixed interest rate of6.®3incipal
payment is due September 30, 2013. (See Note
(3) Payments required under Ic-term capitalized lease contrac

(4) Primarily represents commitments to purchase minimuantities of raw materials used in our productio
processes. We enter into these contracts fromttirtiene in an effort to ensure a sufficient supplyaw
ingredients. In addition, we have contractual altligns to purchase various services that are parro
production proces:

(5) In accordance with GAAP, these obligations areraftected in the accompanying balance sheets. @pgra
lease obligations consist of minimum rental paymmemider no-cancelable operating leas

(6) Benefit obligations consist of future paymentstedao pension and postretirement benefits as attuirby an
actuarial valuation
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(7) Deferred compensation obligations have been abalctat payment periods based on existing paymens ita
terminated employees and the estimated timingsifidutions of current employees based on

(8) The FIN 48 long term liability recorded by the Ccemp is $1.1 million at December 31, 2008, 50% oichhis
expected to be settled within one to three yedrs.rémaining 50% or $0.6 million has been excludeh the
table. The timing of cash settlement for this morfiif any, cannot be reasonably estimated duéfsetting
positions and conclusions upon audit. The Compagngss unrealized tax benefit is approximately $gilion.
The difference between the gross unrealized tarfiteaand the FIN 48 liability is due to the inclasiof
corollary positions, interest, penalties, as welttee impact of state taxes on the federal taxitigbwhich are
included in the computation of the FIN 48 liabilltyt not the gross unrecognized tax benefit. (Sate M to our
Consolidated Financial Statemen

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any obligations that meet the dafimof an off-balance sheet arrangement, other tha
operating leases, which have or are reasonablly likehave a material effect on our ConsolidatetbRcial
Statements.

Other Commitments and Contingencies

We also have the following commitments and contimidiabilities, in addition to contingent liabil@s related t
ordinary course litigation, investigations and sadits:

« certain lease obligations, a

« selected levels of property and casualty risksnarily related to employee health care, workers’
compensation claims and .other casualty los

See Note 20 to our Consolidated Financial Statesrfentmore information about our commitments and
contingent obligations.

Critical Accounting Policies

“Critical accounting policies” are defined as thdisat are both most important to the portrayal obmpany’s
financial condition and results and that requiremost difficult, subjective or complex judgmernits many cases
the accounting treatment of a particular transaasaspecifically dictated by generally acceptedcoanting
principles with no need for the application of quofgment. In certain circumstances, however, tleparation of th
Consolidated Financial Statements in conformityhvgiénerally accepted accounting principles requisst® use ot
judgment to make certain estimates and assumpfitiese estimates affect the reported amounts efsaaac
liabilities and disclosures of contingent asset$ labilities at the date of the Consolidated FitiahStatements and
the reported amounts of net sales and expensewdte reporting period. We have identified theges described
below as our critical accounting policies. See Note the Consolidated Financial Statements fogtailkd
discussion of these and other accounting policies.

Accounts Receivable— We provide credit terms to customers generally irapgp to 30 days, perform ongo
credit evaluations of our customers and maintdowalnces for estimated credit losses. As thesefachange, our
estimates change and we could accrue different atador doubtful accounts in different accountiregipds. At
December 31, 2008, our allowance for doubtful ant®was $0.5 million, or approximately 0.6% of #reounts
receivable balance. We also maintain an allowaoceustomer promotional programs, marketing co+@gm@ams
and other sales and marketing expenses. This alloavia based on historical rolling twelve monthrage program
activity and can fluctuate due to the level of salad marketing programs. This allowance was $1limand
$10.5 million, at December 31, 2008 and 2007, retbyely.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets— Goodwill and intangible assets totaled $721.Bioni as of December 31,
2008, resulting primarily from acquisitions. Upacgaisition, the purchase price is first allocateddientifiable
assets and liabilities, including trademarks amstauer-related intangible assets, with

28




Table of Contents

any remaining purchase price recorded as good@dbdwill and indefinite lived trademarks are notaatized. For
purposes of goodwill impairment testing, our reprtunits are defined as Retail Grocery — U.S. aiR&rocery —
Canada, Food Away From Home — U.S., Food Away Frtome — Canada, Industrial Bulk and Co-Pack.

We believe that a trademark has an indefiniteififehas sufficient market share and a historgibng sales
and cash flow performance that we expect to coatfbuthe foreseeable future. If these perpetaalemark criteria
are not met, the trademarks are amortized over ¢éxpiected useful lives. Determining the expecifedolf a
trademark requires considerable management judgamehis based on an evaluation of a number of fecto
including the competitive environment, market shénademark history and anticipated future tradénsapport.

Indefinite lived trademarks and goodwill are evédabfor impairment annually in the fourth quarrmore
frequently, if other events occur, to ensure thatvalue continues to exceed the related bookevam indefinite
lived trademark is impaired if its book value exdeéair value. Goodwill impairment is indicatedhi book value
of its reporting unit exceeds its fair value. Iétfair value of an evaluated asset is less themoivk value, the asset
written down to fair value, which is generally bdsm its discounted future cash flows. Future bessresults cou
impact the evaluation of our goodwill and intangibksets.

The Company completed its annual goodwill and imitef lived intangible asset impairment analysiofs
December 31, 2008. Our assessment was completedhgiissistance of an independent third partyatiaiu
specialist, and did not result in goodwill impaimheéWe have six reporting units, five of which caintgoodwill.
Our analysis employed the use of both a markefrasaine approach, with each method given equal wieigh
Significant assumptions used in the income apprasddbde growth and discount rates, margins andCti@pany’s
weighted average cost of capital. We used histopiedormance and management estimates to detemmangins
and growth rates. Discount rates selected for egobrting unit varied, with the weighted averagealbfliscount
rates being equal to the total Company discouet @tr weighted average cost of capital includegvaew and
assessment of market and capital structure assomsptrurther supporting our assessment of goodtitle fact
that our Company'’s stock price has increased fraoenber 31, 2007 to December 31, 2008 by over 18%.
However, if the fair value of one of our reportingits, which contains $11.7 million of goodwill,cfeases by
approximately 6.0% due to changes in expected ftasis or key assumptions, the reporting unit cquibdientially
be impaired in the future. Our other reporting sirfdir values were well in excess of their cargyiralues.
Considerable management judgment is necessaryatoat® the impact of operating changes and to astifature
cash flows. Changes in our estimates or any obthar assumptions used in our analysis could resaldifferent
conclusion.

We reviewed our indefinite lived intangible assethjch include our trade names, using the reli@ffiroyalty
method. Significant assumptions include the royatgwth and discount rates. Our assumptions wasedon
historical performance and management estimatesethas available data on licenses of similar pigid. Our
analysis resulted in the impairment of our San Amtd-arms® trade name, totaling approximately $0.6 milliongdan
is related to the North American Retail Groceryrsegt. No other impairment was identified. Our as&also
resulted in changing the classification of the B8atonio Farms®, Steinfeld® and Natures Goodne8srade names
from indefinite to definite lived assets. Our charg classification is consistent with the Companyolicy that
indefinite lived assets must have a history ofrgjreales and cash flow performance that we expegiritinue for
the foreseeable future. When these criteria alemger met, the Company changes the classificaGonsiderable
management judgment is necessary to evaluate ecinof operating changes and to estimate futwsie iaws.
Changes in our estimates or any of our other assongpused in our analysis could result in a déferconclusion.

Amortizable intangible assets are evaluated forainmpent whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recable. If an evaluation of the undiscounted castvdlindicates
impairment, the asset is written down to its estéddair value, which is generally based on distedrfiuture cash
flows. We reviewed our amortizable intangible diinived assets and concluded no changes aresagds the
remaining useful lives or values.
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Purchase Price Allocation— We allocate the cost of acquisitions to the @saequired and liabilities assumed.
All identifiable assets acquired, including ideiatifie intangibles, and liabilities assumed aregaesi a portion of
the cost of the acquired company, normally equéheédr fair values at the date of acquisition. Bixeess of the cost
of the acquired company, over the sum of the ansoasdigned to identifiable assets acquired, labgities
assumed is recorded as goodwill. We record thelmtirchase price allocation based on evaluatfonformation
and estimates available at the date of the finhstagéements. As final information regarding fa@dwe of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed is received atichates are refined, appropriate adjustments adertmthe
purchase price allocation. To the extent that adjhstments indicate that the fair values of asmedsliabilities
differ from their preliminary purchase price alltioas, such differences would adjust the amouritealed to those
assets and liabilities and would change the amallusated to goodwill. The final purchase prickeedtion
includes the consideration of a number of factordetermine the fair value of individual assetsuireg and
liabilities assumed, including quoted market pridesecast of expected cash flows, net realizablaes, estimates
of the present value of required payments and ehétetion of remaining useful lives.

Income Taxes— Deferred taxes are recognized for future tax effe€temporary differences between finan
and income tax reporting using tax rates in effecthe years in which the differences are expetegverse. We
periodically estimate our probable tax obligatioség historical experience in tax jurisdictionslanformed
judgments. There are inherent uncertainties relatdie interpretations of tax regulations in thegdictions in
which we operate. These judgments and estimatee ataalpoint in time may change based on the owdagitax
audits and changes to or further interpretationggfilations. If such changes take place, theagisk that our tax
rate may increase or decrease in any period, whdehd have an impact on our earnings. Future bssinesults
may affect deferred tax liabilities or the valuatiof deferred tax assets over time.

Stock-Based Compensatier Income from Continuing Operations Before Incohaees, for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, includaekased compensation expense for employee saudati
stock options, restricted stock, restricted stagitsy and performance units of $12.2 million an@.$1million,
respectively.

The fair value of stock options, restricted staestricted stock unit awards and performance \{tfits
“Awards”) is determined on the date of grant. Stopkions were valued using a Black Scholes modelcantain
restricted stock and restricted stock units wetaadiusing a Monte Carlo simulation. Performanciéstand all
other restricted stock and restricted stock unirals were valued using the closing price of the famy’s stock on
the date of grant. Shabmsed compensation expense, as calculated andeeoander SFAS No. 123(R), could h
been impacted, if other assumptions were usedh&umbre, if we use different assumptions in fupggods, stock-
based compensation expense could be impacteduirefperiods. As the Company’s stock was not puptielded
prior to June 27, 2005, expected volatilities aasdal on the implied historical volatilities fromgpeompanies and
other factors. The Company has estimated thationestaployees will complete the required serviceditions
associated with certain restricted stock, restlisteck units, stock options and performance umirds. For all
other employees, the Company estimates forfeitasasot all employees are expected to completbalieaquired
service conditions. The expected service periddddonger of the derived service period, as ddtexchfrom the
output of the valuation models, and the servicéogdvased on the term of the Awards. The risk-inéerest rate for
periods within the contractual life of the Awardsiased on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in etietie time of the
grant. As the Company does not have significartbhjso determine the expected term of its optiomials, we
based the expected term on that of comparable auegal he assumptions used to calculate the optidn
restricted stock awards granted in 2008 are predantNote 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statéme

Insurance Accruals— We retain selected levels of property and caguisks, primarily related to employee
health care, workers compensation claims and ctmuralty losses. Many of these potential lossesarered unde
conventional insurance programs with third-partyrieas having high deductible limits. In other esgae are self-
insured with stop-loss coverage. Accrued liabgitier incurred but not reported losses relatetiése retained risks
are calculated based upon loss development fagtich contemplate a number of variables, includilagms
history and expected trends. These loss developfaetars are based on
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industry factors and, along with the estimatedilitids, are developed by us in consultation witteenal insurance
brokers and actuaries. At December 31, 2008 and,20€ recorded accrued liabilities related to thesained risks
of $8.5 million and $8.2 million, respectively, Inding both current and long-term liabilities. Clgas in loss
development factors, claims history and cost trexoddd result in substantially different resultdhie future.

Employee Benefit Plan Costs- We provide a range of benefits to our employeesdiding pension and
postretirement benefits to our eligible employesd @etirees. We record annual amounts relatingded plans
based on calculations specified by generally aeckptcounting principles, which include variousiadal
assumptions, such as discount rates, assumedrmyeistates of return, compensation increases, gma@lturnover
rates and health care cost trend rates. We reviewaaiuarial assumptions on an annual basis ané mak
modifications to the assumptions based on curaesrand trends, when it is deemed appropriateedisred by
generally accepted accounting principles, the efiethe modifications is generally recorded and#ired over
future periods. Different assumptions that we madad result in the recognition of different amainf expense
over different periods of time.

In 2005, we retained investment consultants tesassir Investment Committee with the transitiorplain asse
to a master trust and to help our Investment Cotemformulate a long-term investment policy for itasvly
established master trust. Our current asset midedjuies, under the investment policy, target egsitit 55% to 65%
of the portfolio and fixed income at 35% to 45%.2d¢cember 31, 2008, our master trust was investddllaws:
equity securities of 63%; fixed income securiti€88%; and cash and cash equivalents of 4%.

We determine our expected long-term rate of rebased on our expectations of future returns foptresion
plan’s investments based on target allocationk®@pension plan’s investments. Additionally, wesidar the
weighted-average return of a capital markets mtigelwas developed by the plan’s investment coastdtand
historical returns on comparable equity, debt aheéoinvestments. The resulting weighted averageeted long-
term rate of return on plan assets is 7.60%.

While a number of the key assumptions related taqoalified pension plans are long-term in natureluding
assumed investment rates of return, compensat@aares, employee turnover rates and mortalitg rgenerally
accepted accounting principles require that owaliat rate assumption be more heavily weighteditceat market
conditions. As such, our discount rate will likelyange more frequently. We used a discount radetermine our
estimated future benefit obligations of 6.25%, at@mber 31, 2008.

See Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statesrfentmore information regarding our employee pemsinc
retirement benefit plans.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Information regarding recent accounting pronounagsis provided in Note 2 to the Consolidated Faian
Statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Interest Rate Fluctuations

The Company entered into a $200 million long temteriest rate swap agreement with an effective afate
November 19, 2008 to lock into a fixed LIBOR intstreate base. Under the terms of the agreemen®, $20on in
floating rate debt was swapped for a fixed 2.9%riggt base rate for a period of 24 months, amogito
$50 million for an additional nine months at thenga?.9% interest rate. Under the terms of the Carylpa
revolving credit agreement, and in conjunction vath credit spread, this will result in an all iartowing cost on
the swapped principal being no more than 3.8% dutie life of the swap agreement.

In July 2006, we entered into a forward interetd gavap transaction for a notational amount of $hlldon as
a hedge of the forecasted private placement of $ii0idn in senior notes. The interest rate swamsaction was
terminated on August 31, 2006, which resulted jmeatax loss of $1.8 million. The
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unamortized loss is reflected, net of tax, in Acalated Other Comprehensive Loss in the Consolidatddnce
Sheets. The total loss will be reclassified ratdablthe Consolidated Statements of Income as arase to interest
expense over the term of the senior notes, proyidimeffective interest rate of 6.29% over the teofithe senior
notes.

We do not utilize financial instruments for tradipgrposes or hold any derivative financial instratseother
than our interest rate swap agreement, as of Deze8ih 2008, which could expose us to significaatkmat risk.
Our exposure to market risk for changes in interasts relates primarily to the increase in the amhof interest
expense we expect to pay with respect to our rawpleredit facility, which is tied to variable matrates. Based
our outstanding debt balance of $372.0 million urale revolving credit facility, and adjusting ftive $200 million
fixed rate swap agreement, as of December 31, 238, 1% rise in our interest rate would increasarderest
expense by approximately $1.7 million annually.

Input Costs

The costs of raw materials, as well as packagingmads and fuel, have varied widely in recent geand
future changes in such costs may cause our refudiserations and our operating margins to fluasgnificantly.
Many of the raw materials that we use in our préslugse to unusually high levels during 2008, idalg processe
vegetables and meats, soybean oil, casein, chedgeaakaging materials. In addition, fuel costsicivliepresent
the most important factor affecting utility costsoar production facilities and our transportatawsts, rose to
unusually high levels in the middle of 2008. Furthere, certain input requirements, such as glasg us
packaging, are available only from a limited numdbiesuppliers.

The most important raw material used in our piakgerations is cucumbers. We purchase cucumbers unde
seasonal grower contracts with a variety of grovsénategically located to supply our productioniliaes. Bad
weather or disease in a particular growing areadeamage or destroy the crop in that area, whichdvioopair crop
yields. If we are not able to buy cucumbers frogalsuppliers, we would likely either purchase ecubers fronm
foreign sources, such as Mexico or India, or shipuenbers from other growing areas in the UnitedeStahereby
increasing our production costs.

Changes in the prices of our products may lag lietiranges in the costs of our materials. Competitiv
pressures also may limit our ability to quicklysaiprices in response to increased raw materiatkaging and fuel
costs. Accordingly, if we are unable to increasepices to offset increasing raw material, packggind fuel cost
our operating profits and margins could be matigrediversely affected. In addition, in instancesle€lining input
costs, customers may be looking for price redustiarsituations where we have locked into pricihbigher costs.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
TreeHouse Foods, Inc.
Westchester, IL 60154

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of TreeHouse Foods, Inc. and subsidignies
“Company”) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, aaddlated consolidated statements of income, stidkls’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three yguatse period ended December 31, 2008. Our aulditsiacluded
the financial statement schedule listed in the Xretdtem 15. These consolidated financial statémend financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the@amy’s management. Our responsibility is to expeesopinion
on the financial statements and financial stateraeln¢dule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighago
(United States). Those standards require that ame ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuréigifinancial statements. An audit also includegssing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thralbfieancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateta@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinaricial
position of TreeHouse Foods, Inc. and subsidiasesf December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the reduheio
operations and their cash flows for each of thedtyears in the period ended December 31, 20@®nformity
with accounting principles generally accepted & thited States of America. Also, in our opinioncis financial
statement schedule, when considered in relatidinetdasic consolidated financial statements takemwahole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the iinfation set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the Company'’s internal controlrdireancial reporting as of December 31, 2008, Hasethe
criteria established imternal Control — Integrated Frameworésued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and goontedated February 25, 2009 expressed an unaadhlifi
opinion on the Company’s internal control over finel reporting.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, lllinois

February 25, 2009
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TREEHOUSE FOODS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31
2008 2007
(In thousands, except shar
and per share data)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 2681 $ 9,23«
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accowh$478 and $63 86,83’ 76,95
Inventories, ne 245,79( 297,69:
Deferred income taxe 6,76¢ 2,79(
Net assets of discontinued operati — 544
Assets held for sal 4,081 —
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 10,31¢ 7,06¢
Total current asse 356,47¢ 394,27!
Property, plant and equipment, | 270,66 265,00°
Goodwill 560,87: 590,79:
Deferred income taxe — 3,50¢
Identifiable intangible and other assets, 167,66! 202,38:
Total asset $1,355,68. $1,455,95!
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 187,79' $ 144,09(
Current portion of lon-term debt 47¢ 677
Total current liabilities 188,27( 144,76
Long-term debi 475,23: 620,45:
Deferred income taxe 27,48t 27,517
Other lon¢-term liabilities 44,56: 33,91:
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share, 10,00GBares authorized, none iss — —
Common stock, par value $.01 per share, 40,006086:s authorized, 31,544,515
and 31,204,305 shares issued and outstanding ctesghe 31t 31z
Additional paic-in-capital 569,26: 550,37(
Retained earning 113,94¢ 85,724
Accumulated other comprehensive |i (63,399 (7,097
Total stockholder equity 620,13: 629,30¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $1,355,68. $1,455,95!

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TREEHOUSE FOODS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31

2008

2007

2006

(In thousands, except per share date

Net sales $1,500,65( $1,157,90. $939,39¢
Cost of sale: 1,208,62 917,61.  738,81¢
Gross profit 292,02: 240,29:  200,57¢
Operating costs and expens

Selling and distributiol 115,73: 94,63¢ 74,88¢

General and administrati\ 61,74: 53,93 57,91«

Amortization expens 13,52¢ 7,19t 3,26¢

Other operating (income) expenses, 13,89¢ (415) (19,847

Total operating costs and expen 204,89¢ 155,34 116,22

Operating incom: 87,12t 84,94 84,35¢
Other (income) expens

Interest expens 27,61 22,03¢ 12,98¢

Interest incomi (207 (112) (665)

Loss (gain) on foreign currency exchat 13,04( (3,469 —

Other (income) expense, r 7,12: (36) —

Total other expens 47,67( 18,41¢ 12,32(

Income from continuing operations, before incomes 39,45¢ 66,52¢ 72,034
Income taxe: 10,89¢ 24.87: 27,33
Income from continuinoperations 28,56( 41,65: 44,701
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, néagfexpense (benefit) of

$(213), $(19) and $95, respectivi (33€) (30) 15E
Net income $ 2822: $ 41,62: $ 44,85¢
Weighted average common shal

Basic 31,34 31,20: 31,15¢

Diluted 31,46¢ 31,35 31,39¢
Basic earnings per common shg

Income from continuing operatiol $ 91 % 1.3: $ 1.4:

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, ndtg (.01) — .01

Net income $ 9C $ 132 $§ 14
Diluted earnings per common shs

Income from continuing operatiol $ 91 % 1.3t $ 1.4z

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, netg (.07 — .01

Net income $ 9C ¢ 1.3 $§ 1.4:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TREEHOUSE FOODS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance, December 31, 20C

Net income

Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax
benefit of $1,46:

Loss on derivatives, net of tax of $7

Amortization of loss on derivatives, net of tax of
$34

Comprehensive incorr

Initial impact upon adoption of SFAS 1&

Pension, net of tax of $2,0(

Postretirement obligation, net of tax of $£

Stock options exercised, including tax benefit of
$624

Adjustment of deferred taxes related to Distribar

Stocl-based compensatic

Balance, December 31, 20C

Net income

Pension & post-retirement liability adjustment, ni
of tax of $76¢

Foreign currency translation adjustm

Amortization of loss on derivatives, net of tax of
$101

Comprehensive incorr

Stock options exercised, including tax benefit®

Stock options forfeite:

Adoption of FIN 48

Stocl-based compensatic

Balance, December 31, 20C

Net income

Pension & pos-retirement liability adjustment, n
of tax of $4,07(

Foreign currency translation adjustm

Amortization of loss on derivatives, net of tax of
$101

Comprehensive los

Stock options exercised, including tax benefi
$1,356

Stock options forfeite:

Stocl-based compensatic

Balance, December 31, 20C

Accumulated

Additional Retained Other Total
Common Stock Paid-In Earnings Comprehensive Stockholders

Shares Amount Capital (Deficit) Loss Equity

(In thousands)

31,08t $ 311 $516,07. $ (749 $ (2,279 $ 513,35
— — — 44,85¢ — 44,85¢
— — — — 2,27¢ 2,27¢
— — — — (1,129) (1,129)
— — — — 53 53
— — — — — 46,06(
— — — — (3,155 (3,155
_ _ — — (875) (879
114 1 2,10t — — 2,10¢
— — (36) — — (36)
— — 18,79 — — 18,794
31,20z 31z 536,93 44,10¢ (5,105 576,24¢
— — — 41,62: — 41,62:
— — — — 1,172 1,172
— — — — (3,325 (3,325
— — — — 161 161
— — — — — 39,63(
2 — 44 — — 44
— — (18¢) — — (18¢)
- - — (6) - (6)
— — 13,58( — — 13,58(
31,20¢ 312 550,37( 85,72« (7,099 629,30¢
— — — 28,22 — 28,22¢
— — — — (6,261) (6,261)
— — — — (50,199 (50,19%)
— — — — 162 162
— — — — — (28,079
341 3 6,78 — — 6,79(
— — (88) — — (88)
— — 12,19: — — 12,19¢
31,54 $ 31t $569,26. $113,94¢ $ (63,399 $ 620,13:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TREEHOUSE FOODS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 28,22« $ 41,62: $ 44,85¢
Loss (income) from discontinued operatic 33€ 30 (155
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciatior 32,32¢ 27,79 21,38:
Amortization 13,52¢ 7,19¢ 3,26¢
Stocl-based compensatic 12,19:¢ 13,58( 18,79¢
Loss on foreign currency exchange, intercompang 9,03¢ — —
Mark to market adjustment on interest sv 6,981 — —
Gain on disposition of asse (469 (49¢) (728)
Write-down of impaired asse 5,991 — 8,20(
Deferred income taxe 5,31¢ 5,94( 12,96«
Curtailment of postretirement benefit obligat — — (29,409
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic (377 — —
Other 137 161 53
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, natqtiisitions
Receivable: (14,39 10,16+ (20,495
Inventories 43,39¢ (27,11 (23,219
Prepaid expenses and other as (2,069 4,39( (1,939
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitied 35,49( 13,17: 26,27¢
Net cash provided by continuing operatis 175,64¢ 96,43: 59,85(
Net cash used in discontinued operati (10) (30) (224)
Net cash provided by operating activit 175,63t 96,40: 59,62¢
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipm (55,47)) (19,819 (11,379
Insurance procee( 12,045 — —
Cash outflows for acquisitions and investmentss t&sh acquire (25)) (449,93) (287,70)
Proceeds from sale of fixed ass 1,67¢ 1,46 2,15(
Net cash used in continuing operatis (41,99¢) (468,28f) (296,92)
Net cash provided by discontinued operati 157 467 147
Net cash used in investing activiti (41,839 (467,819 (296,77%)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of d — 440,03! 350,00(
Net repayment of del (145,53 (59,150 (120,367)

Payments of deferred financing co — (230 (2,587
Excess tax benefits from stc-based payment arrangeme 377 — 624
Proceeds from stock option exerci: 5,43¢ 44 1,482

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (139,72¢) 380,69¢ 229,15
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casia&mnts (6149 (58 —
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivi (6,549 9,22¢ (7,995
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 9,23( 6 8,001
Cash and cash equivalents, end of $ 2687 $ 923 $ 6

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TREEHOUSE FOODS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business —Fhe Company is a food manufacturer servicing prilpéne retail grocery and foodservice
distribution channels. Our products include nomydpowdered creamer, soup and infant feeding prisdpickles
and related products, salad dressings, saucesajagngie fillings, aseptic products, Mexican sauaes refrigerated
salad dressings and liquid non-dairy products.

Basis of Consolidatior— The Consolidated Financial Statements includeatedunts of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balasmiead transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates— The preparation of our Consolidated Financiat&nents in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requiresnagement to use judgment to make estimates anthptisns
that affect the reported amounts of assets andlitied and disclosures of contingent assets aatdilities at the date
of the Consolidated Financial Statements and therted amounts of net sales and expenses durirmgpoeting
period. Actual results could differ from these esties.

Cash Equivalents— We consider temporary cash investments withraginal maturity of three months or less
to be cash equivalents.

Inventories — Inventories are stated at the lower of cost arkat. Pickle inventories are valued using the
last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method, while all of gwther inventories are valued using the firstfinst-out (“FIFO”)
method. The costs of finished goods inventoriekige raw materials, direct labor and indirect pretchn and
overhead costs.

Property, Plant and Equipment Property, plant and equipment are stated atisitign cost, plus capitalized
interest on borrowings during the actual constarcieriod of major capital projects. Also includegroperty,
plant and equipment are certain direct costs rlatehe implementation of computer software faeinal use.
Depreciation and amortization are calculated usliegstraight-line method over the estimated udafes of the
assets as follows:

Asse _ Useful Life
Buildings and improvement
Improvements and previously existing structt 10 to 20 yeal
New structure: 40 year
Machinery and equipmer
Manufacturing plant equipme 5 to 20 yeat
Transportation equipme 3to 8 year
Office equipmen 3to 10 yeat

We perform impairment tests when circumstancesatdithat the carrying value may not be recoverable
Capitalized leases are amortized over the shoftiwed lease term or their estimated useful ligad amortization
expense is included in depreciation expense. Expesrd for repairs and maintenance, which do ngrave or
extend the life of the assets, are expensed as@ttu
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Intangible and Other Assets- Identifiable intangible assets with finite livase amortized over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Asse Useful Life

Customer relationshiy Straigh-line method over 5 to 15 yei
Trademarks/trade nam Straigh-line method over 10 to 20 ye
Non-competition agreemen Straigh-line method over the terms of the agreen
Deferred financing cos Straigh-line method over the terms of the related
Formulas/recipe Straigh-line method over 5 to 7 yei

Indefinite lived trademarks and goodwill are evadabfor impairment annually in the fourth quartenmre
frequently, if events or changes in circumstanodgate that the asset might be impaired. Indefilivied
trademarks are impaired and goodwill impairmerdscated when their book value exceeds fair valiuthe fair
value of an evaluated asset is less than its bahleythe asset is written down to fair value, \Whggenerally base
on its discounted future cash flows.

Stock-Based Compensatier Effective July 1, 2005, we adopted the requinetmef SFAS 123(R)Share-
Based Paymen This Statement requires that compensation paiu eguity instruments be measured at grant-date
fair value and that the resulting expense be reizedrover the relevant service period.

Sales Recognition and Accounts ReceivableSales are recognized when persuasive eviderae of
arrangement exists, the price is fixed or deterbimaitle and risk of loss transfer to customerd there is a
reasonable assurance of collection of the saleepds. Product is shipped FOB shipping point anB B&stinatior
depending on our agreement with the customer, @aaddounted for in accordance with generally aeckept
accounting principles. In accordance with Emerdasyies Task Force (EITF) 01-0%counting for Consideration
Given by a Vendor to a Customsales are reduced by certain sales incentives, sbmiich are recorded by
estimating expense based on our historical expegieWe provide credit terms to customers rangingpgD days,
perform ongoing credit evaluation of our custorrgerd maintain allowances for potential credit lods@sed on
historical experience. Estimated product returrisicivhave not been material, are deducted frons sdléhe time ¢
shipment.

Income Taxes— The provision for income taxes includes fedeiakign, state and local income taxes
currently payable and those deferred because gfdeary differences between the financial stateraadttax bases
of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assetsabilities are computed based on the differencevben the financial
statement and income tax bases of assets andtikshilsing enacted marginal tax rates. Valuatitowances are
recorded to reduce deferred tax assets when ibie tikely than not that a tax benefit will not temlized. Deferred
income tax expenses or credits are based on tmgebkan the asset or liability from period to pdrio

The Company has net operating loss and tax cradi éorwards available in certain jurisdictionsrémluce
future taxable income. Future tax benefits foroprating loss and tax credit carry forwards acegaized to the
extent that realization of these benefits is coer&id more likely than not. This determination isdzhon the
expectation that related operations will be suéfitly profitable or various tax, business and ofilanning strategic
will enable us to utilize the operating loss anddeedit carry forwards. We cannot be assuredwleatvill be able to
realize these future tax benefits or that futudeaton allowances will not be required. To theesttthat available
evidence raises doubt about the realization offerde income tax asset, a valuation allowancestabdished.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactionrs The functional currency of the Company’s foreign
operations is the applicable local currency. Thefional currency is translated into U.S. dollansbalance sheet
accounts using currency exchange rates in effeat 8 balance sheet date and for revenue andhegmecounts
using a weighted-average exchange rate duringsbal fyear. The translation adjustments
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are deferred as a separate component of stocklbtgrity, captioned accumulated other comprehensiss.
Gains or losses resulting from transactions denatadhin foreign currencies are included in Othecdime)
expense, in the Consolidated Statements of income.

Shipping and Handling Fees- Our shipping and handling costs are includeldath cost of sales and selling
and distribution expense, depending on the natuseah costs. Shipping and handling costs includembst of sale
reflect inventory warehouse costs, product loadind handling costs, and costs associated withgeatisg finishe
products from our manufacturing facilities to owvrodistribution warehouses. Shipping and handliogt€included
in selling and distribution expense consist prifyast the cost of shipping products to customerstigh third party
carriers. Shipping and handling costs recordedasrgonent of selling and distribution expense were
approximately $60.2 million, $48.1 million and $@anillion, for years ended 2008, 2007 and 2006 eetvely.

Derivative Financial Instruments— From time to time, we utilize derivative finaatinstruments including
interest rate swaps, foreign currency contractsfarvdard purchase contracts to manage our expasunterest
rate, foreign currency and commaodity price riske #¢count for derivatives in accordance with SFAS 183,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgingivities,as amended by SFAS No. 138 and SFAS No. 14¢
do not hold or issue financial instruments for spative or trading purposes. The Company accoumtisf
derivative instruments as either assets or liadsliand carries them at fair value. Derivatives #na not designated
as hedges according to GAAP must be adjustedtedhie through earnings. For derivative instrureghat are
designated as cash flow hedges, the effectivequodi the gain or loss is reported as accumulatieelro
comprehensive income and reclassified into earrimgfze same period when the hedged transactiectsff
earnings. The ineffective gain or loss is recoghizecurrent earnings. For further information abour derivative
instruments see Note 21.

Capital Lease Obligations— Capital lease obligations represent machinetyexjuipment financing
obligations, which are payable in monthly instalitgeof principal and interest and are collateralibg the related
assets financed.

Insurance Accruals— We retain selected levels of property and caguisks, primarily related to employee
health care, workers’ compensation claims and athsuvalty losses. Many of these potential lossesarered
under conventional insurance programs with thindypearriers having high deductible limits. In ottzgeas, we are
self-insured with stop-loss coverage. Accrued liads for incurred but not reported losses reldtethese retained
risks are calculated based upon loss developmetarfawhich contemplate a number of factors, inclgdlaims
history and expected trends. These accruals aedajemd by us in consultation with external insueahmokers and
actuaries.

Facility Closing and Reorganization Costs- We periodically record facility closing and rganization
charges, when we have identified a facility forstice or other reorganization opportunity, developgthn and
notified the affected employees.

Research and Development CostsWe record research and development chargeg&ner as they are
incurred. The expenditures totaled $6.9 million,8%illion and $2.7 million, for years ended 200807 and 2006,
respectively.

Advertising Costs— Advertising costs are expensed as incurred epdrted in the selling and distribution line
of our Consolidated Statements of Income.
2. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting StasslBoard (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) 15&ir Value Measurementwhich defines fair value, establishes a framework
measuring fair value, and expands disclosures dhoutalue measurements. The provisions of SFAB 15
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are effective for fiscal years beginning after Nower 15, 2007. In February 2008, the FASB issue8 B &taff
Position (FSP) FAS 157-2, which delays the effectiate of Statement 157 for all nonrecurring faiue
measurements of nonfinancial assets and nonfindrahdities until fiscal years beginning after Member 15,
2008. We adopted the provisions of SFAS 157 thaewet deferred, the adoption of which did not Bigantly
impact the Company. We will adopt the remainingvsions of SFAS 157 beginning January 1, 2009. ddhegption
of the remaining provisions of this Statement aeaxpected to materially impact the Company. Weagpiply
these new provisions to future assessments ofdisie where applicable, which are expected to tecliwture
acquisitions and impairment analyses under FAS®rstant 142. We do not expect our conclusions oaimpent
to change solely due to the adoption of these piaws.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS TH® Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fiogl
Liabilities — Including an Amendment of FASB Statement, 1i&t permits measurement of financial instruments
and other certain items at fair value. SFAS 15%dus require any new fair value measurements. SFSs
effective for financial statements issued for flgears beginning after November 15, 2007. Adoptdb8FAS 159
did not have an impact on our financial statemaste/e elected not to fair value financial instruteeand certain
other items under SFAS 159.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141BR¥iness Combinationa,replacement of SFAS 141,
Business CombinationThe provisions of SFAS 141(R) establish princigad requirements for how an acquirer
recognizes and measures in its financial statentkatslentifiable assets acquired, the liabilisgsumed, any non-
controlling interest acquired and the goodwill doed. SFAS 141(R) also establishes disclosure rements that
will enable users to evaluate the nature and filgedfects of the business combination, and appbebusiness
combinations for which the acquisition date is omfber December 31, 2008, and may not be earlptado The
Company will adopt SFAS 141(R) for acquisitioneathe effective date.

In December 2007, FASB issued SFAS 186n-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financ&htements —
an Amendment of ARB 5Ihe provisions of SFAS 160 outline the accountind eeporting for ownership interests
in a subsidiary held by parties other than the a®FAS 160 is effective for fiscal years, anaiith periods withii
those fiscal years, beginning on or after DecembeR008. Earlier application is prohibited. SFA&® 1s to be
applied prospectively as of the beginning of tisedi year in which it is initially adopted, excépt the presentation
and disclosure requirements, which are to be appéirospectively for all periods presented. Wendbexpect this
Statement to impact the Company’s financial statémepon adoption.

In March 2008, FASB issued SFAS 1@&lisclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedghativities.
SFAS 161 requires increased qualitative, and creskitdisclosures. This Statement is effectivefiioancial
statements issued for fiscal years and interinoplerbeginning after November 15, 2008. Early adops
permitted. Further, entities are encouraged, butetuired to provide comparative disclosures fotier periods.
We will adopt the provisions of SFAS 161 beginnifagnuary 1, 2009, and do not expect its adoptiompact the
Company. We will provide the required disclosurgibaing with our first quarter report on Form 10+{2009.

In May 2008, FASB issued SFAS 16he Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Eiptes. SFAS 162
identifies the sources of accounting principles tredframework for selecting the principles usethig preparation
of financial statements presented in conformityhvgienerally accepted accounting principles in thiédd States. It
does not change current practice. This Statemesitdstive 60 days following the SEC’s approvatiud Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments toS&ction 411The Meaning of Present Fairly in
Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Pipfes. Adoption of this Statement will not have an imipac
our financial statements.
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EITF 08-6,Equity Method Investment Accounting Consideratiaras issued in November 2008 and is
effective for transactions occurring in fiscal y&beginning on or after December 15, 2008. ThiFBARS issued to
provide guidance on how to apply Account Princifesrd Opinion 18 as a result of the issuance dogtéon of
SFAS 141(R) and SFAS 160. EITF 08-6 resulted im tmnsensuses: (1) the initial carrying amountroéquity
method investment should be determined by appliiegost accumulation model in appendix D of SFAS(R),
(2) when reviewing for impairment, Opinion 18 shibbk used, (3) share issuances by the investeddsteu
accounting for as if the equity method investodsoproportionate share of its investment, anav@gn the
investment is no longer accounted for under Opidi®mand is instead within the scope of cost metwmbunting or
SFAS 115, the investor should prospectively appéydrovisions of Opinion 18 or SFAS 115 and usectireent
carrying amount of the investment as its initiadtcd’he adoption of EITF 08-6 is not expected teeha significant
impact on the Company.

On December 30, 2008, the FASB issued FASB StdditiBa (FSP) 132R-1IEmployers Disclosures about
Postretirement Benefit Plan AsseThis FSP is effective for fiscal years ending aldecember 15, 2009. This FSP
requires disclosure about investment policies aradegies, the fair value of each major categorglaf assets, the
methods and inputs used to develop fair value nieasents of plan assets, and concentrations oftaiskli As this
FSP only pertains to disclosure areas, the Comgaag not expect its impact upon adoption to beifsignt.

3. ACQUISITIONS

In April 2007, the Company acquired 49% of the ngtstock of Santa Fe Ingredients, a New Mexico dhase
chili processing company supplying leading packaged companies with industrial green chili andjsno
peppers in aseptic drums. In August 2007, the Compzade loans to Santa Fe Ingredients in the fdrm o
convertible notes to fund working capital requireisen the amount of approximately $2.3 million.eTierms of
this transaction have not been disclosed as weusethe amounts are not significant. The investrizenéing
accounted for under the equity method of accounting

On May 4, 2007, the Company acquired substantillgf the assets of DeGraffenreid, LLC, a processul
distributor of pickles and related products to fibedservice industry, from Bell-Carter Foods, Ifar.$10.8 million.
The company is located in Springfield, Missouri duaal annual sales of approximately $23.0 milliome purchase
included all of the company’s working capital arrdguction equipment. Concurrent with the acquisitid assets,
the Company entered into a lease for the land aiiditigs used in the operation of the acquired fess. The
acquisition has been accounted for under the peecheethod of accounting and results of operatioménaluded in
our financial statements from the date of acquisiti

On May 31, 2007, the Company completed the acdiprisdf all the partnership interests and other tamiging
equity interests in VDW Acquisition, Ltd. (“VDW”)yrsuant to a purchase agreement dated April 207 20th
Silver Brands Partners I, LP, VDW Farms, Ltd. &fdW Management, LLC. VDW is a San Antonio, Texasdzh
manufacturer of Mexican sauces, including salseanie sauce, cheese dip, enchilada and taco sautek,are
sold to retail customers primarily under privatedbarrangements and to food service customers tinele
San Antonio Farms label. This acquisition expanal@dproduct offerings, primarily in the private &lmarket.
San Antonio Farms had annual revenue of approxlyngs.3 million.

The Company paid a cash purchase price of $89llbmilvhich includes acquisition related costs of
$1.0 million and a working capital adjustment ofSillion. The transaction was financed throughrbaings
under the Company’s credit facility.

The acquisition has been accounted for under thehpse method of accounting and the results ofatipeis
are included in our financial statements from thtedf acquisition. The purchase price was
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allocated to the net assets acquired based upovefaies at the date of acquisition. We have madallacation to
net tangible and intangible assets acquired abiitias assumed as follows:

(In thousands'

Cash $ 4
Receivable! 4,43
Inventory 4,652
Property plant and equipme 8,51(
Trade name 97C
Formulas/recipe 237
Customer relationshiy 21,58(
Non-compete agreeme 1,62(
Goodwill 50,04:
Other asset 144
Total assets purchas 92,19(
Assumed liabilities (2,827
Total purchase pric $ 89,36¢

On October 15, 2007, the Company acquired all geFaiing assets of E.D. Smith Income Fund (the 8Fuyn
including all of the outstanding equity interestd.D. Smith & Sons, GP, Ltd., E.D. Smith & SonP, &nd E.D.
Smith & Sons, Limited pursuant to a purchase atelagreement with E.D. Smith Operating Trust, ESBnith
Limited Partnership and the Fund dated June 247 28fllectively E.D. Smith. E.D. Smith is a Canadia
manufacturer of branded and private label jamsfiltiegs, ketchup, sauces, and salad dressingssérae both
retail and foodservice customers in the UnitedeStand Canada. The acquisition of E.D. Smith alldnesCompan
to expand its product offerings and distributiotwak domestically and internationally. E.D. Smiitad annual
sales of approximately $295 million.

The Company paid a cash purchase price of approgiyn®347.8 million, which includes acquisitionatdd
costs of approximately $6.0 million. The transattigas financed through borrowings under the Comigazredit
facility.

The acquisition has been accounted for under thehpge method of accounting and the results ofatioais
are included in our financial statements from thtedf acquisition. The purchase price was allattdghe assets
and liabilities acquired based upon fair values.
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(In thousands,

Cash $ 1,95¢
Receivable! 26,98(
Inventory 45,77(
Property plant and equipme 50,86(
Trade name 27,58
Recipes 1,625
Customer relationshiy 87,58(
Supply agreemen 377
Other asset 1,88¢
Deferred taxe 4,59
Goodwill 159,67.
Total assets acquire 408,88
Accounts payable and accru (40,567
Other lon¢-term liabilities (5,617
Deferred taxe (14,899
Total liabilities acquirec (61,079
Total purchase pric $ 347,80

In connection with the acquisition, the Companybkkshed and approved plans to integrate certagnations
of E.D. Smith with the existing operations of then@pany, for which the Company recorded approximgatel
$12.0 million in purchase accounting adjustmentdenithe guidance in EITF 95-Becognition of Liabilities in
Connection with a Business Combinatidhe purchase accounting adjustments include tlablesttiment of
reserves, primarily related to severance (approdtp&10.0 million). Additional reserves were edistied for the
integration of certain facilities. There were payseof approximately $2.0 million and $0.1 millioglated to these
reserves for the years ended December 31, 2008G0%] respectively. Cash payments for severancexarected t
be fully paid by the end of 2010. See Note 4 reiggrthe closure of the Cambridge, Ontario manuféaoguplant.
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The following pro forma summary presents the eftddhe DeGraffenreid, San Antonio Farms and E.mits
businesses acquired in the second and fourth gqaaft@007, respectively, as though the busindsaddeen
acquired as of January 1, 2007, and is based upaundited financial information of the acquired 8es. There
were no acquisitions during 2008.

Year Ended
December 31, 2007
(In thousands, excep
per share data)

Net sales as reportt $ 1,157,90:
Net sales of purchased businesses, for the periodtp acquisitior 245,73!
Pro forma net sale $ 1,403,63
Net income, as reporte $ 41,62
Net loss of purchased businesses, for the period foracquisitior (8,757%)
Pro forma net incom $ 32,86¢
Basic earnings per common shg

As reportec $ 1.32

Effect of purchased businesses, for the period poiacquisitior (.28)

Pro forma earnings per she— basic $ 1.0¢
Diluted earnings per common shs

As reportec $ 1.3¢

Effect of purchased businesses, for the period priacquisitior (.28)

Pro forma earnings per shi— diluted $ 1.0t

4. FACILITY CLOSINGS

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2008 tinepany recorded $12.8 million of costs, (included
Other operating expense in our Condensed Consetldatatements of Income), related to the closutheof
Portland, Oregon plant, which included a fixed agspairment charge of $5.2 million to reduce therging value
of the Portland facility to its net realizable v@Ji$6.7 million for contract terminations and othests, as well as
$1.0 million for severance. The following is a suamnof the liabilities recorded by the Company &aral during
the year ended December 31, 2008:

Accrued Accrued
Charges at Charges at
December 31 December 31
2007 Accruals Payments 2008
(In thousands)

Contract termination $ —  $3,09z $(3,09) % —
Work force reduction — 97C (939 37
Capital lease and service contract buy 5,681 1,69¢ (7,375 —
Total $ 5681 $575¢ $(11,400 $ 37

The Portland facility was closed in the second tgrasf 2008. Total costs are expected to be $13Ibm of
which $8.6 million will be in cash. We expect t@ium approximately $1.1 million related to the claswf which
$0.8 million pertains to expected executory coBbe company expects to fund these costs throudghfoars
operations.
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On November 3, 2008, the Company announced placisge its salad dressings manufacturing plant in
Cambridge, Ontario. Production will be moved to @@mpany’s existing manufacturing facilities in @da and the
United States. The closure will result in the Compa production capabilities being more alignedhattie needs of
our customers. The Company intends to cease alatpes by July 2009. The majority of the closuosts were
included as costs of the acquisition of E.D. Sraitld are not expected to impact earnings. Totab@rst expected
be approximately $1.8 million. As of December 3202, the Company has accrued approximately $1 liomfior
the closure, the components of which include $1ilkam for severance and $0.5 million for closingdaother costs.
No payments were made in 2008. The Company expagisents to be completed by the end of 2009, wiit
payments expected to be funded by cash from operati

5. INVENTORIES

December 31

2008 2007
(In thousands)
Raw materials and suppli $ 82,86¢ $ 89,32¢
Finished good 181,31: 222,45:
LIFO reserve (18,390 (14,089
Total $245,79(  $297,69.

Approximately $83.0 million and $92.4 million of bimventory was accounted for under the LIFO metbbd
accounting at December 31, 2008 and 2007, resgdctiVvhe LIFO reserve reflects the excess of threetii cost of
LIFO inventories at December 31, 2008 and 2007r theeamount at which these inventories were vabrethe
consolidated balance sheets. During 2008 and 2@®@curred LIFO inventory liquidations that reddazur cost ¢
sales and increased pre-tax income by $3.1 midlimh$1.1 million, respectively.

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

December 31,

2008 2007
(In thousands)
Land $ 7,341 $ 9,677
Buildings and improvemen 85,36! 82,215
Machinery and equipme 267,85t 252,96:
Construction in progres 30,04 16,89
Total 390,59¢ 361,74t
Less accumulated depreciati (119,93 (96,747)
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 270,66:  $265,00°
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfer years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, are as

follows:

North American Food Away Industrial

Retail Grocery From Home and Export Total

(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 240,04¢ $ 56,02¢ $ 86,50« $382,58:
Gooduwill from acquisitior 130,63 30,49: 47,07¢ 208,20¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 370,68t 86,52: 133,58 590,79:
Purchase price adjustme (145) (13 — (15§¢)
Foreign currency exchange adjustm (26,897) (2,867%) — (29,759
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 343,65. $ 83,64 $133,58. $560,87-

Approximately $194.8 million of goodwill is dedubteé for tax purposes.

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amddizaf our intangible assets other than goodwilbas
December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

December 31

2008 2007
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
(In thousands)
Intangible assets with indefinite live
Trademark $2782¢ % — $2782¢ $44360 $ —  $ 44,367
Intangible assets with finite live
Custome-related 137,69: (23,4300 114,26 152,81: (13,607  139,20!
Non-compete agreemer 2,62( (1,427 1,19¢ 2,64¢ (70€) 1,93¢
Trademark: 17,61( (1,385 16,22 8,50( (970) 7,53(
Formulas/recipe 1,58: (37§) 1,20t 1,84¢ (87) 1,762
Total other intangible $187,33( $ (26,615 $160,71! $210,17- $ (15,37) $194,80.

As of December 31, 2008, the weighted average ranwauseful life for the amortizable intangible etssare
(1) customer related at 12.3 years, (2) non-compgteements at 1.7 years, (3) trademarks at 1418 yad
(4) formulas/recipes at 4.0 years. The weightedageremaining useful life in total for all amoetide intangible
assets is 12.8 years as of December 31, 2008.

Amortization expense on intangible assets was $h8lBn, $7.2 million and $3.3 million, for the ges ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectivelymittd intangible asset amortization expense ®n#xt five
years is as follows

(In thousands'

2009 $ 13,08:
2010 $ 12,59
2011 $ 10,70t
2012 $ 10,40¢
2013 $ 10,17¢
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Indefinite lived trademarks and goodwill are evédabfor impairment annually in the fourth quartenmre
frequently, if events or changes in circumstanodgate that the asset might be impaired. Indefilivied
trademarks are impaired and goodwill impairmerdscated when their book value exceeds fair valluthe fair
value of an evaluated asset is less than its bahleythe asset is written down to fair value, Whggenerally base
on its discounted future cash flows.

Amortizable intangible assets are evaluated forainmpent whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be reble. If an evaluation of the undiscounted castv$lindicates
impairment, the asset is written down to its esteéddair value, which is generally based on distediuture cash
flows.

Considerable management judgment is necessanatoate the impact of operating changes and to estim
future cash flows. Assumptions used in our impairt@valuations, such as forecasted growth rate®andost of
capital, are consistent with our internal projecti@nd operating plans.

During our 2008 impairment review, we determinedt the Steinfeld’® pickle trademark, Natures Goodné&ss
infant feeding trademark and San Antonio Fafsalsa trademarks can no longer be classified aimiie lived,
and we will amortize their remaining balance ovesit expected remaining useful life of 10, 20 afd/&ars ,
respectively, beginning in 2009. Our review resiiitean impairment expense of approximately $0 Manirelated
to our San Antonio Farnftrademark and is recorded within the Other opegdiimcome) expense line of our
Consolidated Statements of Income, and pertaittsetdlorth American Retail Grocery segment.

During our 2007 impairment review, we determineat thhe Farman’® pickle trademark can no longer be
classified as indefinite lived, and we are amantizihe remaining balance over the expected rentwimeful life of
20 years. Our review did not result in impairmexmortization of this trademark began in 2008.

8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

December 31

2008 2007
(In thousands)

Accounts payabl $135,50: $102,62¢
Payroll and benefit 15,20¢ 19,35(
Insurance(1 9,55¢ —
Interest and taxe 4,67( 7,821
Health insurance, worke' compensation and other insurance c 4,14: 4,471
Marketing expense 4,69¢ 3,72¢
Other accrued liabilitie 14,02: 6,09<

Total $187,79!  $144,09(

(1) See Note 17 Insurance Cla— New Hampton
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9. INCOME TAXES
Components of Earnings from Continuing Operati@efpre Income Taxes are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)
Domestic sourc $35,96¢ $71,10¢ $72,03¢
Foreign sourct 3,48¢ (4,58)) —
Earnings from continuing operations, before incdene $39,45¢ $66,52f $72,03¢

The following table presents the components ofb@8, 2007 and 2006 provision for income taxes:

Year Ended December 31
2008(1) 2007(1) 2006(1)
(In thousands)

Current:
Federa $ 3,85¢ $15,07: $12,35¢
State 1,54¢€ 3,30( 2,01(
Foreign 177 561 —
5,581 18,93: 14,36¢
Deferred:
Federa 3,66¢ 7,462 10,94(
State 35C 1,377 2,02¢
Foreign 1,29¢ (2,899 —
5,314 5,94( 12,96«
Total income tax expen: $10,89F $24,87: $27,33:

(1) Excludes $(0.2) million, $(0.02) million and $0.1llilnn income tax expense (benefit) related to digmued
operations in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respecti

The following is a reconciliation of income tax expe computed at the U.S. federal statutory taxteethe
income tax expense reported in the Consolidateti®tnts of Income:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)
Tax at statutory rat $13,80¢ $23,28¢ $25,21:
State income taxe 1,23 3,041 2,621
Tax benefit of cros-border intercompany financing structt (4,762 — —
Reduction of enacted tax rates on deferred taXitiab (Canada — (1,359 —
Other, ne 61F (94) (500
Total provision for income taxe $10,89¢ $24,87! $27,33:
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The tax effects of temporary differences giving ris deferred income tax assets and liabilitiesewer

December 31
2008 2007
(In thousands)

Deferred tax asset

Pension and postretirement bene $ 568 $ 3,531
Accrued liabilities 11,14: 13,911
Loss and credit carry forwar: 6,31t 9,00¢
Stock compensatic 20,78 16,16¢
Unrealized foreign exchange Ic 3,20z —
Unrealized loss on interest sw 2,67¢ —
Total deferred tax asse 49,80¢ 42,62(
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortizatic (68,359 (61,517
Asset valuation reservi (2,167%) (2,330
Total deferred tax (liabilities (70,527 (63,847
Net deferred income tax asset (liabili $(20,716)  $(21,22))

Classification of net deferred tax assets (liak#i} in the Consolidated Balance Sheets is asvsllo

December 31

2008 2007
(In thousands)
Current assel $ 6,76¢ $ 2,79
Non-current assel — 3,50¢
Non-current liabilities (27,485 (27,517
Total net deferred tax (liabilitie: $(20,71¢)  $(21,229)

No valuation allowance has been provided on dedelar assets as management believes it is moilg tthkan
not that the deferred income tax assets will bly fillcoverable.

The Americans Job Creation Act of 2004, enacteddtober 2004, created a new deduction for manufaictu
for their domestic production activities. The effen the Company’s effective tax rate for contirquoperations for
2008, 2007 and 2006 was a reduction of 0.5%, 1.0890ad4%, respectively.

We had the following tax loss and tax credit cdorwvards as of December 31, 2008:

Years of Expiration:

Amount Beginning Ending
(In thousands)
U.S. federal loss carry forwar: $ 2,761 202¢ 202¢
U.S. state loss carry forwar 2,81z 201¢ 202¢
U.S. federal excess interest expe 1,592 No expiration
Foreign loss carry forwarc 14,83: 201z 2027
Foreign credit carry forwarc 57€ 2011 202t
Total carry forward: $  22,58(
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All of these tax loss and tax credit carry forwaatle associated with the 2007 acquisition of EDitls The
U.S. federal and state losses and excess inteqashge limitation under Internal Revenue Code 8edb3(j) are
subject to limitation under Section 382 of the intd Revenue Code. Management has considered taetiad
impact of Section 382 and believes that all ofaheve carry forwards will more likely than not kdized. Thus, nc
offsetting valuation allowance has been recorded.

The Company or one of its subsidiaries files incdanereturns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, Caaand
various state jurisdictions. The Company was formedanuary 25, 2005 and thus is subject to fed@ctate
income tax examinations from 2005 forward. ThermiRevenue Service (“IRStompleted an examination of 1
Company’s 2005 and 2006 federal income tax returtise second quarter of 2008. The Company paid tax
adjustments of approximately $0.3 million that prienarily temporary items, the impact of which wilverse in
future years. The Company has various state tamigedions in process, which are expected to be tateghin due
course.

E.D. Smith and its affiliates are subject to CaaadlJ.S. and state tax examinations from 2003 faiwEhe
IRS is currently conducting an examination of E9bnith’s U.S. affiliates for 2005. That examinatierexpected to
be completed in 2009.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB Integtien No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes, on January 1, 2007. As a result of the implent@ntaf Interpretation 48, the Company recognized a
immaterial adjustment to its liability for unrecaged tax benefits. During the year, the Companygneed
adjustments to its unrecognized tax benefits. Amediation of the beginning and ending amount mfacognized
tax benefits is as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007

(In thousands)
Unrecognized tax benefits beginning bala $1,76¢ $ 224
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 212 15t
Additions based on tax positions of prior ye 654 1,422
Reductions for tax positions of prior yei (118§ 32
Foreign currency translatic (215) —
Payment: (307 —
Unrecognized tax benefits ending bala $1,998  $1,76¢

The Company does not anticipate any significanigtdjents to its unrecognized tax benefits witheriaxt
twelve months.

Included in the balance at December 31, 2008 amiata that are offset by deferred taxes (i.e., tyany
differences) or amounts that would be offset bymes in other taxing jurisdictions (i.e., corollagjustments).
Thus, only $0.8 million of the amount accrued at&uber 31, 2008 would impact the effective tax, idteversed.

The Company recognizes interest expense and pEshedlated to unrecognized tax benefits in incaare t
expense. During the years ended December 31, 200807, the Company recognized $0.2 million and
$0.1 million in interest and penalties in income ¢éxpense, respectively. No interest or penaltiesewecognized in
2006. The Company had approximately $0.5 milliod $6.4 million for the payment of accrued interast
penalties at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respBctive

The Company considers its investment in E.D. Staithe permanent and therefore, under Accounting
Principles Board (APB) 23ccounting for Income Taxes — Special Aréas,Company has not provided
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U.S. income taxes on the earnings of E.D. Smitthetranslation of its financial statements int&Hollars. A
provision has not been established because iripregent intention to reinvest the E.D. Smith atrdbuted
earnings indefinitely in Canada. The determinatibthe amount of unrecognized U.S. federal incoaxditbilities
for the E.D. Smith unremitted earnings at Decen®ier2008 is not practical at this time.

During the first quarter of 2008, the Company esdeanto an intercompany financing structure thaths in
the recognition of foreign earnings subject towa &ffective tax rate. As the foreign earnings azmanently
reinvested, U.S. income taxes have not been prdvielar the year ended December 31, 2008, the Compan
recognized a tax benefit of approximately $5.3ioillrelated to this item.

10. LONG-TERM DEBT

December 31
2008 2007
Amount Amount
Outstanding QOutstanding
(In thousands)

Revolving credit facility $ 372,000 $ 511,50(
Senior note: 100,00( 100,00
Tax increment financing and other di 3,70¢ 9,62¢
475,70¢ 621,12¢

Less current portio (47%) (677)
Total lon¢-term debr $ 475,230  $ 620,45:

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt, at bdmr 31, 2008, were as follows (in thousands):

2009 $ 47¢%
2010 44¢
2011 372,29(
2012 28¢
2013 102,16(
Thereafte 52

Total outstanding del $475,70¢

Revolving Credit Facility— On August 30, 2007, the Company entered into Aadngent No. 2 of our
unsecured revolving Credit Agreement, as amended‘@redit Agreement”), dated June 27, 2005, witraup of
participating financial institutions. Among othéirigs, Amendment No. 2 reduces the available liggid
requirement with respect to permitted acquisitiand reduces the required consolidated interestrageaatio at th
end of each fiscal quarter. The Company also eseddis option under the Credit Agreement to ineedae
aggregate commitments under the revolving creditifia from $500 million to $600 million. The Credhgreement
also provides for a $75 million letter of credibfimit, against which $8.6 million in letters ofeatit have been
issued but undrawn. Proceeds from the credit fgaitiay be used for working capital and general caafe
purposes, including acquisition financing. The dréatility contains various financial and othestictive
covenants and requires that we maintain certaanfiral ratios, including a leverage and interesecage ratio. We
are in compliance with all applicable covenantsfadecember 31, 2008. We believe that, given oghdw from
operating activities and our available credit cayaee can comply with the current terms of thedit facility and
meet foreseeable financial requirements. The Chgglitement expires August 31, 2011. As of Decendlie2008,
available funds under this facility totaled $21en#lion,

53




Table of Contents

TREEHOUSE FOODS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Interest is payable quarterly or at the end ofaihlicable interest period in arrears on any onthtay
borrowings at a customary Eurodollar rate plusaelicable margin, or at a customary base rate ufkderlying
rate is defined as the rate equal to the Britishik®as Association LIBOR Rate for Eurodollar Rateahs, or the
higher of the prime lending rate of the administ@tgent or federal funds rate plus 0.5% for Baate Committed
Loans. The applicable margin for Eurodollar loambased on our consolidated leverage ratio andesaingm
0.295% to 0.90%. In addition, a facility fee basedour consolidated leverage ratio and ranging f6od8% to
0.225% is due quarterly on all commitments underatedit facility. Our average interest rate ontdelistanding
under our Credit Agreement at December 31, 2008u&G%.

The credit facility contains limitations on liensyestments, the incurrence of subsidiary indet#sdnmergers,
dispositions of assets, acquisitions, materiaklioebusiness and transactions with affiliates. deelit facility
restricts certain payments, including dividends] prohibits certain agreements restricting theitgtoff our
subsidiaries to make certain payments or to gueeamtir obligations under the credit facility. Thedit facility
contains standard default triggers, including withiamitation:

« failure to pay principal, interest or other amouthi® and payable under the credit facility andteeldoan
documents

- failure to maintain compliance with the financialdeother covenants contained in the credit agregr
* incorrect or misleading representations or wares;

« default on certain of our other de

« the existence of bankruptcy or insolvency procegsli

* insolvency,

« existence of certain material judgmet

« failure to maintain compliance with ERIS

« the invalidity of certain provisions in any loanadmnent, anc

« a change of contra

Senior Notes— On September 22, 2006, we completed a privaegphent of $100 million in aggregate
principal of 6.03% senior notes due September 803 2pursuant to a Note Purchase Agreement ameng th
Company and a group of purchasers. All of the Caomsaobligations under the senior notes are futig a
unconditionally guaranteed by Bay Valley Foods, L laGvholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The®en
notes have not been registered under the Secukitiesf 1933, as amended, and may not be offeresblarin the
United States, absent registration or an applicekéenption. Net proceeds were used to repay outisigin
indebtedness under the revolving Credit Agreematdrest is paid semi-annually in arrears on M&ttand
September 30 of each year. For the year ended Dexwedt, 2008, the Company exceeded the permitteddge
ratio of 3.5 to 1.0 requiring an additional intérpayment of 1.0% per annum. The maximum permitgdrage
ratio is 4.0 to 1.0, therefore, the Company wasoimpliance with the covenants of the Note Purcihageement.
The Company’s leverage ratio was under 3.5 to tlMeaember 31, 2008 and, therefore, the Company doe
expect to pay the additional interest of 1.0% i020

The Note Purchase Agreement contains covenantfirtfiathe ability of the Company and its subsidgarto,
among other things, merge with other entities, geahe nature of the business, create liens, imdditional
indebtedness or sell assets. The Note Purchasergrd also requires the Company to maintain cefitzémcial
ratios. We are in compliance with the applicableetmnts as of December 31, 2008. Events of defalitde, but
are not limited to:

« failure to pay principal or interes
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» breach of the Compa’s covenants or warrantie

» any payment default or acceleration of indebtedoéfise Company or any subsidiary, if the total amicof
such indebtedness exceeds $25 million,

« events of bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidationaihxing the Company or its material subsidiar

Swap Agreements— The Company entered into a $200 million longrtémterest rate swap agreement with an
effective date of November 19, 2008 to lock intixad LIBOR interest rate base. Under the termagreement,
$200 million in floating rate debt was swappedddixed 2.9% interest base rate for a period ofm@hths,
amortizing to $50 million for an additional nine nths at the same 2.9% interest rate. Under thestefrthe
Company’s revolving credit agreement and in corjoncwith our credit spread, this will result in atin
borrowing cost on the swapped principal being noentban 3.8% during the life of the swap agreemEme.
Company did not apply hedge accounting to this swap

In July 2006, the Company entered into a forwaterast rate swap transaction for a notional amoftint
$100 million, as a hedge of the forecasted priptdeement of $100 million senior notes. The interate swap
transaction was terminated on August 31, 2006, wtesulted in a pre-tax loss of $1.8 million. Thexmortized
loss is reflected, net of tax, in Accumulated Otemprehensive Loss in the Balance Sheet. Thelagsiwill be
reclassified ratably to the Consolidated Statemehbscome as an increase to interest expensetbgderm of the
senior notes, providing an effective interest @t6.29% over the term of the senior notes. In 2@083 million of
the loss was taken into interest expense. We patieithat $0.3 million of the loss will be recldigsl to interest
expense in 2009.

Tax Increment Financing— On December 15, 2001, the Urban Redevelopmetitokity of Pittsburgh
(“"URA") issued $4.0 million of redevelopment bongsirsuant to a Tax Increment Financing Plan tosassth
certain aspects of the development and construofitimee Company’s Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania faetitiThe
agreement was transferred to the Company as p#réafcquisition of the Soup and Infant FeedingifBess. The
Company has agreed to make certain payments vegece to the principal amount of the URA'’s redepetent
bonds through May 2019. As of December 31, 2008 &#llion remains outstanding. Interest accruesrnsannual
rate of 6.61% for the $0.6 million tranche whicldise on November 1, 2011; 6.71% for the $0.4 nmlti@mnche
which is due on November 1, 2013; and 7.16% foi$th® million tranche which is due on May 1, 2019.

Capital Lease Obligations and Other- Capital lease obligations include various praoig notes related to
lease obligations of property, plant and equipm€&hné various promissory notes payable providerftarest at
varying rates and are payable in monthly installtmen principal and interest until maturity, whér tremaining
principal balances are due. Capital lease obligatadso represent machinery and equipment finaratitigations,
which are payable in monthly installments of prpadiand interest and are collateralized by thaedlassets
financed.

11. FOREIGN CURRENCY CONTRACTS

During 2007, the Company entered into a forwardenay contract used to hedge the Canadian doll@hpse
price of E.D. Smith. The contract was settled oto®er 15, 2007, the acquisition date, and resuttedgain of
approximately $3.3 million, which was recordedhe Consolidated Statement of Income.

The Company, through its E.D. Smith subsidiaryessd into foreign currency contracts due to theosupe to
Canadian/U.S. dollar currency fluctuations on citomsler transactions. These contracts did not fyuali hedge
accounting. The Company recorded the fair valuth@$e contracts on the Consolidated Balance Shddias
recorded the change in fair value through the Clideted Statement of Income, within Other (IncorB&pense. Al
foreign currency contracts have expired as of D31, 2008. During 2008, the Company realized@pmately
$0.7 million in gains on these contracts. For theqa October 15, 2007
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through December 31, 2007, the Company recordedsadn these contracts totaling approximately solzon.

12. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

Common stock— The Company has authorized 40 million sharesoaimon stock with a par value of $0.01
per share and 10 million shares of preferred stattk a par value of $0.01 per share. No prefertedkshas been
issued.

As of December 31, 2008, there were 31,544,515 camshares issued and outstanding. There is naitseas
stock.

Earnings per share— Basic earnings per share is computed by dividietgincome by the number of weighted
average common shares outstanding during the ieggrériod. The weighted average number of comnhaines
used in the diluted earnings per share calculaticlides the incremental effect related to outstamdptions whos
market price is in excess of the grant price. Qem@stricted stock units and restricted stock aware subject to
market conditions for vesting. The market condiidor the restricted stock units and restrictedlstowvards were
not met as of December 31, 2008, and thus therimemnéal effect of the related restricted stock uaitd restricted
stock awards were excluded from the diluted eamp®y share calculation.

The following table summarizes the effect of tharshbased compensation awards on the weightedggevera
number of shares outstanding used in calculatihgedi earnings per share:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)
Weighted average common shares outstan 31,34, 31,20: 31,15¢
Assumed exercise of stock options 96 14¢ 92
Assumed vesting of restricted stock and restristedk units 32 — 14¢€
Weighted average diluted common shares outstar 31,46¢ 31,357 31,39¢

(1) The assumed exercise of stock options excludesi#lian, 2.1 million and 1.7 million of options cstinding,
which were an-dilutive for the years ended December 31, 2008720@1 2006, respectivel

13. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Our Board adopted and our stockholders approvedtbeHouse Foods, Inc. 2005 Long-Term IncentivaPla
The Plan was amended and restated as the “Treelfoosts, Inc. Equity and Incentive Plan” on Februgy2007.
The Plan is administered by our Compensation Cotaajitvhich consists entirely of independent dinectdhe
Compensation Committee determines specific awandsur executive officers. For all other employbetow the
position of senior vice president (or any analogiities), and if the committee designates, our Cheécutive
Officer or such other officers will, from time torte, determine specific persons to whom awards theePlan will
be granted and the extent of, and the terms anditomms of each award. The Compensation Committéts o
designee, pursuant to the terms of the Plan, alsanake all other necessary decisions and integpigns under the
Plan.

Under the Plan, the Compensation Committee mayt graards of various types of equity-based compénsat
including stock options, restricted stock, res&icstock units, performance shares and performamteand other
types of stock-based awards, and cash-based coatjpensonsisting of annual bonuses. The maximumbeurof
shares that are available to be awarded underdmeis?approximately 6.0 million.
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Income from continuing operations before tax, for years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 200@ &t
share-based compensation expense for employedractbd stock options, restricted stock, restrictautk units
and performance units of $12.2 million, $13.6 roifliand $18.8 million, respectively. The tax benef@ognized
related to the compensation cost of these shardtmsards was approximately $4.6 million, $5.3iomlland
$7.1 million for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Company has estimated that certain employdesomplete the required service conditions astedia
with certain restricted stock, restricted stocktsirstock options and performance unit awards abather
employees, the Company estimates forfeitures, talhemployees are expected to complete the redwservice
conditions. The expected service period is the éomd the derived service period, as determinechfitee output of
the valuation models, and the service period basdtie term of the awards.

Options were granted under our long-term incenpia@ and in certain cases pursuant to employment
agreements. Options were also granted to our ngulegree directors. All options granted have threaryerms
which vest one-third on each of the first threeieensaries of the grant date, and a maximum terterof/ears.

The following table summarizes stock option acyivdtiring 2008:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Employee Director Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Options Options Price Term (yrs) Value
Outstanding, December 31, 20 2,100,87i 457,30( $ 26.2¢ 7.6 $2,971,49
Grantec 442,70( 4,80C $ 23.9¢
Forfeited (37,650 (14,299 $ 26.9¢
Exercisec (19,99) (321,68) $ 16.01
Outstanding, December 31, 20 2,485,93 126,117 $ 27.21 7.4  $3,394,93
Vested/expect to vest, at December 31, 2 2,437,51i 123,61° $ 27.2¢ 74  $3,282,88
Exercisable, December 31, 20 1,661,40 89,44t $ 28.4( 6.7 $1,246,40

During the years ended December 31, 2008, 2002@0, the total intrinsic value of stock optionerised
was approximately $3.8 million, $5.0 thousand ahd$nillion, respectively. The tax benefit recogrdZrom stock
option exercises in 2008, 2007 and 2006 was apmiabely $1.4 million, $2.0 thousand and $0.6 million
respectively. Compensation expense related to teseptions totaled $6.4 million at December 30&8and will
be recognized over the remaining vesting periothefgrants, which averages 1.7 years. The average date fair
value of options granted, in 2008, 2007 and 2006 $&09, $9.23 and $9.05, respectively.

In addition to stock options, certain key manageneemployees were granted restricted stock andatestr
stock units, pursuant to the terms of their empleghragreements. These restricted shares vest ndeséith
January, and are subject to a market conditionrdwatires that the total stockholder return of Hegse exceed the
median of a peer group of 22 companies for theiegigle vesting period. In addition, there is a clative test at
January 27, 2007 through 2010 that allows for mgstif previously unvested grants, if the total ktadder return
test is met on a cumulative basis. Subsequentte 24, 2008, all the restricted stock units may sasany date
where the Company’s stock price exceeds $29.68 #ir trading day period. TreeHouse issued 630,84ees of
restricted stock and 616,802 restricted stock uimitthe second quarter of 2005, pursuant to thel@gment
agreements, and 43,000 shares of restricted statlei
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first quarter of 2007, that are also subject totthial stockholder return of TreeHouse as comptuéis peer group
as described above. No restricted stock units vesceed in 2007.

During 2008, the Company began issuing restrictecksand restricted stock units to non-employeeatars
and a larger pool of employees. Generally theimsth stock and restricted stock unit awards gchdteing 2008
vest based on the passage of time. Awards gramteahployees generally vest one-third on each arsavg of the
grant date. Additionally, certain restricted staskards issued to our executives are subject tafarpgance
condition that requires operating income for thevipus twelve months to be greater than $0. Thiglitmn may be
satisfied on a yearly or cumulative basis overdhrears. Restricted stock units granted to oureraployee
directors vest over one year. The fair value o$¢hawards is equal to the closing price of ourkstocthe date of
grant. The following table summarizes the restdatock and restricted stock unit activity durir@pa:

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average

Grant Employee Grant Director Grant

Employee Date Restricted Date Restricted Date

Restricted Fair Stock Fair Stock Fair

Stock Value Units Value Units Value
Unvested, at January 1, 20 626,62: $ 24.2¢ 584,33¢ $ 25.31 — —
Granted 786,60( $ 24.07 14,600 $ 24.1: 22,20C  $ 24.0¢
Vested — — — — — —
Forfeited (900 $ 24.0¢ — — — —
Unvested, at December 31, 2( 1,412,32; $ 24.1¢ 598,93¢ $ 25.2¢ 22,20( $ 24.0¢

Compensation expense for all restricted stock astticted stock units totaled $6.4 million in 2008,
$7.0 million in 2007, and $12.8 million in 2006.

Future compensation cost for restricted stock astticted stock units is approximately $16.0 milles of
December 31, 2008, and will be recognized on a litejaverage basis, over the next 2.5 years.

Performance unit awards were granted to certainimesrof senior management during 2008. These awards
contain service and performance conditions. Fonh @acformance period (July 1, 2008 through Decertte2008,
calendar 2009 and calendar 2010), one third ofittits will accrue multiplied by a predefined perzage between
0% and 200%, depending on the achievement of oavférating performance measures. Additionallyttier
cumulative performance period (July 1, 2008 throDgitember 31, 2010), a number of units will acageal to th
number of units granted multiplied by a predefipedcentage between 0% and 200%, depending on the
achievement of certain operating performance measigss any units previously accrued. Accruedsumit be
converted to stock or cash, at the discretion ef@bmpensation Committee on the third annivershtiyeogrant
date, June 27, 2011. The Company intends to $k#se awards in stock and has the shares avaiitatiteso. For
the performance period ended December 31, 200& ahgpany achieved 94% of the target, accordingbp @4 the
first tranche of awards have accrued. The Compantirues to expect that 100% of the awards will@eand vest
over the
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cumulative performance and service period, sulijeestimated forfeitures. The following table sunizes the
performance unit activity during the twelve monémsled December 31, 2008:

Weighted

Average

Performance Grant Date

Units Fair Value
Unvested, at December 31, 2( — —
Granted 7290 $ 24.0¢
Vested — —
Forfeited — —
Unvested, at December 31, 2C 7290( $ 24.0¢

Future compensation cost related to the performanite is estimated to be approximately $1.4 millas of
December 31, 2008, and is expected to be recogniedthe next 2.5 years. The grant date fair vafibe awards
granted in 2008 was equal to the Company'’s closiagk price on the grant date.

The fair value of stock options, restricted sta@stricted stock unit awards and performance \{tfits
“Awards”) is determined on the date of grant ugimg assumptions noted in the following table orrtiegket price
of the Company’s stock on the date of grant. Stqutions were valued using a Black Scholes modelcanizin
restricted stock and restricted stock units weteadusing a Monte Carlo simulation. Performanciéstend all
other restricted stock and restricted stock unirals were valued using the closing price of the amy’s stock on
the date of grant. As the Company’s stock was nbtigly traded prior to June 27, 2005, expectedtiliies are
based on the implied historical volatilities fromgp companies and other factors. The risk-freeasteate for
periods within the contractual life of the Awardshiased on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in etietie time of the
grant. As the Company began operations in 2005joveot have significant history to determine thpested term
of our awards based on our experience alone. As, suebased our expected term on that of compacainganies
The assumptions used to calculate the value aftien awards granted in 2008, 2007 and 2006 amdet$tricted
stock awards granted in 2007 are presented asv&llo

200¢ Stock Options Restricted Stoct Restricted Stock Units
Expected volatility 26.31% — —
Expected dividend — — —
Expected tern 6.0 year — —
Risk-free interest rat 3.52% — —

2001 Stock Options Restricted Stoc} Restricted Stock Units
Expected volatility 22.61% 35.6% —
Expected dividend — — —
Expected tern 6.0 year 1.58 year —
Risk-free interest rat 5.0(% 4.74% —
200¢ Stock Options Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Units
Expected volatility 28.5% — —
Expected dividend — — —
Expected tern 6.0 year — —
Risk-free interest rat 5.1&% — —
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14. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss consistseofdliowing components all of which are net of tax,
except for the foreign currency translation adjiesitn

Unrecognized Accumulated

Foreign Pension and Derivative Other
Currency Postretirement Financial Comprehensive

Translation(1) Benefits Instrument Loss

(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2C $ — 3 (2,279 $ — 3 (2,279
Minimum pension liability adjustmel — 2,27¢ — 2,27¢
Impact of adoption of SFAS 1¢ — (4,030 — (4,030
Other comprehensive lo — — (1,075 (1,07%)
Balance at December 31, 2C — (4,030 (2,07%) (5,10%)
Other comprehensive lo (3,325 1,17 161 (1,997)
Balance at December 31, 2C (3,325 (2,85¢) (914 (7,09%)
Other comprehensive lo (50,199 (6,267 162 (56,297
Balance at December 31, 2C $ (5352) % (9,119 $ (752) $ (63,399

(1) The foreign currency translation adjustment ismitof tax, as it pertains to the Company’s permane
investment in the Canadian subsidiary, E.D. Sn

15. EMPLOYEE PENSION AND RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Pension and Postretirement Benefits Certain of our employees and retirees partieifmpension and other
postretirement benefit plans. At the time of thguasition of the Soup and Infant Feeding BusinesmfDel Monte,
the related obligations were assumed by the Comgamyployee benefit plan obligations and expensesidied in
the Consolidated Financial Statements are detethbiased on plan assumptions, employee demograatzic d
including years of service and compensation, b&nefid claims paid, and employer contributions.

Defined Contribution Plans— Certain of our non-union employees participatsavings and profit sharing
plans. These plans generally provide for salaryegdn contributions to the plans on behalf of plagticipants of
between 1% and 20% of a participant’s annual cosgagan and provide for employer matching and prsiidring
contributions. The Company established a tax-gedliflefined contribution plan to manage the as&ets2008,
2007 and 2006, the Company made matching contoibsitio the plan of $2.8 million, $2.0 million and.& million,
respectively.

Multiemployer Pension and Certain Union Plars The Company contributes to several multiemployer
pension plans on behalf of employees covered Hgatole bargaining agreements. These plans arerasteried
jointly by management and union representativescandr substantially all fi-time and certain part-time union
employees who are not covered by other plans. Thitidvhployer Pension Plan Amendments Act of 198@aaed
ERISA to establish funding requirements and obidgest for employers participating in multiemployéanms,
principally related to employer withdrawal fromtermination of such plans. We could, under cert&icumstance:
be liable for unfunded vested benefits or othereases of jointly administered union/managementglanthis
time, we have not established any liabilities beeanithdrawal from these plans is not probabl€désg, 2007 and
2006, the contributions to these plans, which apepsed as incurred, were $1.7 million, $1.8 milla;md
$1.7 million, respectively.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plans- The Company established a tax-qualified penplan and master trust to
manage the portion of the pension plan asset®tetatTreeHouse eligible salaried and non-uniontaridn
employees not covered by a multi-employer pensian.pWe also retain investment consultants to tesis
Investment Committee with formulating a long-temaéstment policy for the master trust. Our curasget mix
guidelines, under the investment policy, targetiteegiat 55% to 65% of the portfolio and fixed inoe at 35% to
45%. At December 31, 2008, our master trust wassted as follows: equity securities of 63%, fixecome
securities of 33%, and cash and cash equivalert%cofThe measurement date for the defined benefisipn plans
is December 31.

The expected long-term rate-of-return-on-assdiased on projecting long-term market returns fenthrious
asset classes in which the plans assets are idyestghted by the target asset allocations. Aatiamagement of
the plan assets may result in adjustments to 8terigal returns. The rate of return assumptiaevsewed annually

Pension benefits for eligible salaried and non-nfiiceeHouse employees were frozen in 2002 for yefars
creditable service. For these employees incremeetation benefits are only earned for changesrmpensation
effecting final average pay. Pension benefits eabyeunion employees covered by collective bargajini
agreements, but not participating in multiemployension plans, are earned based on creditable gesesvice an
the specified benefit amounts negotiated as pahe€ollective bargaining agreements. The Commafuyiding
policy provides that annual contributions to thagien plan master trust will be at least equahtorhinimum
amounts required by ERISA. The Company estimatsith 2009 contributions to its pension plans tél
$7.0 million.

Other Postretirement Benefits- Certain employees participate in benefit progravhich provide certain
health care and life insurance benefits for reteetbloyees and their eligible dependents. The igslanfunded. The
Company estimates that its 2009 contributionss@dstretirement benefit plan will be $0.1 millidrhe
measurement date for the other postretirement hignafis is December 31.

Post Employment Medical Plan Curtailment Effective with the acquisition of the Soup andaht Feeding
Business from Del Monte Foods, Inc. on April 24080the Company became responsible for the funaling
administration of postretirement medical benefitsdertain hourly employees at the Pittsburgh petida facility
and recorded a liability of $31.2 million. On Novker 17, 2006, the Company and the local union edteto an
agreement, whereby all of the Local 325 union erygxs will be covered under the multiemployer paisenaent
medical benefits plan of UFCW Local Union 23, effee on January 1, 2007. As such, the Company feamesl its
liability to the multiemployer plan and no longardes a liability for the accumulated benefit ghlion of
employees covered under that plan. The Compangfsresibility for the accumulated benefit obligatmeased
effective December 31, 2006, resulting in a plariatiment. The curtailment resulted in a one-tinagngof
$29.4 million, $18.0 million net of tax, which isdluded in Other Operating (Income) Expenses, Kehe
Consolidated Statements of Income. The Companyiboited approximately $0.4 million to the post eoywhent
medical plan in 2008.

The Company still maintains responsibility for eémtcurrent and retired union employees, and hawded a
liability of $4.0 million to cover their accumulatdenefit obligations.
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The following table summarizes information about pansion and postretirement benefit plans foryée's
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007:

Pension Benefits

Postretirement
Benefits

2008

2007

2008 2007

(In thousands)

Change in benefit obligation:

(In thousands)

Benefit obligation, at beginning of ye $27,94. $28,33t $3,61¢ $4,827

Service cos 1,75k 1,738 21¢ 24F

Amendment: 1,541 84 — (780)

Settlement: — 222 — —

Interest cos 1,807 1,65¢ 21¢ 204

Actuarial (gains) losse 2,291 (99¢) 2 (799

Benefits paic (1,796 (3,090 (949 (78)
Benefit obligation, at end of ye $3354( $27,94. $3,95¢ $3,61¢
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets, at beginning of \ $17,428 $1595 $ — & —

Actual return on plan asse (5,489 167 — —

Company contribution 7,45¢ 4,391 94 78

Benefits paic (1,796 (3,090 (94 (78)
Fair value of plan assets, at year $1760C $17428 $§ — $ —
Funded status of the plar $(15,940) $(10,517) $(3,959 $(3,619
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Shesonsist

of:

Current liability $ — 8 — $ (110 $ (96

Non-current liability (15,940 (10,517 (3,849 (3,529
Net amount recognize $(15,94() $(10,517) $(3,959 $(3,619
Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehense Los:

consist of:

Net actuarial los $(10,609) $ (1,399 $ 56t $ 57F

Prior service cos (4,450 (3,38¢) (644) (712)
Total, before tax effec $(15,059) $ (4,780 $ (79 $ (139

Pension Benefits
2008 2007
(In thousands)

Accumulated benefit obligation: $30,84¢  $24,78¢
Weighted average assumptions used to determine tpension benefit obligations:

Discount rate 6.25% 6.25%

Rate of compensation increa: 4.0(% 4.0(%
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The key actuarial assumptions used to determinbdhihcare benefit obligations as of Decembe2808 anc
2007 are as follows:

2008 2007
Pre-65 Post 6¢ Pre-65 Post 6¢

Healthcare inflation:

Initial rate 8.C% 10.(% 9.% 11.(%
Ultimate rate 5.C% 5.C% 5.C% 5.C%
Year ultimate rate achieve 2011 201z 2011 201z

Discount rate 6.25% 6.25% 6.25%  6.25%

The following table summarizes the net periodid @d®ur pension plans and postretirement planshi® year
ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands) (In thousands)
Components of net periodic costs:
Service cos $1,758 $1,73: $1,278 $21€ $24E 3$314
Interest cos 1,807 1,65¢ 1,46¢ 21€ 204 214
Expected return on plan as: (1,505 (1,347 (1,08)) — — —
Amortization of unrecognized prior service ¢ 47¢ 47¢ 347 (68) (69) —
Amortization of unrecognized net lo 73 — 23 8 50 93
FAS 88 settlement char — 387 202 — — —
Net periodic pension co $2,60¢ $2907 $2,23 $37€ $431 $621
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Weighted average assumptions used to determii
the periodic benefit costs:
Discount rate 6.25% 5.75% 5.5(-5.75% 6.25% 5.5(-5.75% 5.5(-6.15%
Rate of compensation increa: 4.0(% 4.0(% 40% — — —
Expected return on plan ass 7.6(% 7.6(% 76(% — — —

The estimated amount that will be amortized frorwuatulated other comprehensive income into net pansi
cost in 2009 is as follows:

Pensior Postretirement

(In thousands)
Net actuarial los $59C $ 13
Prior service cos $58 % (68)
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Estimated future pension and postretirement bepafitnents from the plans are as follows:

Pension Postretirement
Benefit Benefit
(In thousands)

2009 $1,47¢ 9 11C
2010 $1,897 $ 12t
2011 $1,90¢ % 11¢
2012 $ 2,158 $ 131
2013 $ 247 % 13t
20142018 $14,27C  $ 971

The effect of a 1% change in health care trendsnatruld have the following effects on the postestient
benefit plan:

2008 2007
(In thousands)

1% Increase

Benefit obligation, end of ye: $754 $687
Service cost plus interest cost for the y $105 $ 99
1% Decrease

Benefit obligation, end of ye: $(627) $(572)
Service cost plus interest cost for the $@83 $ (79

Medicare Modernization Act— In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positidm 106-2 Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements Related to the MediPagescription Drug, Improvement and Modernizatiost 8f
2003(FSP 106-2), in response to a new law regardingcpirgtion drug benefits under Medicare, as weh &sderal
subsidy to sponsors of retiree healthcare benlafitsp

Most of our employees are not eligible for postegtient medical benefits and of those that arenidjerity are
covered by a multi-employer plan in which expere@spaid as incurred. The effect on those coveyquldns for
which we maintain a liability was not significant.
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16. OTHER OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSE, NET

We incurred Other Operating (Income) Expense, K&t8.9 million, $(0.4) million and $(19.8) milliorfior the
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 ctaghe. Other Operating (Income) Expenses, Nesiad ol

the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)
Facility closing costs and impairment charges egldb the Portland, Oregon ple $12,83¢ $ — $ —
Loss on fire at New Hampton, lowa facill 50C — —
Facility closing costs and impairment charges egldb the La Junta, Colorado
plant — — 2,63:
Impairment of trademarks and other intangit 56C — 8,20(
Gain on curtailment of postretirement bene — — (29,409
Gain on sale of La Junta, Colorado distributiontee — — (1,26€)
Gain on sale of La Junta, Colorado manufacturicgifa — (41%) —
Total other operating (income) expense, $13,89¢ $(415) $(19,84)

17. INSURANCE CLAIM — NEW HAMPTON

In February 2008, the Company’s non-dairy powderedmer plant in New Hampton, IA was damaged by a
fire, which left the facility unusable. The Compamgs worked throughout 2008 to repair the facdity it is
expected to be operational in the first quarte2@d9. We filed a claim with our insurance provided have
received approximately $37.5 million in reimbursetsefor property damage and incremental expensesrid to
service our customers throughout this period. Weeekto incur a total of approximately $44 millionexpenses
related to this claim, all of which are expectedbéoreimbursed by our insurance provider, less.a $llion
deductible. As of December 31, 2008, the Compayahiability of approximately $9.6 million recomi@rimarily
related to reimbursements for replacing the fixeskets in excess of the net book value of the fas=etts destroyed
in the fire. This liability is expected to be regadl during 2009 upon finalization of the claim, lwény remaining
amounts being reversed to income and recordedjamaAn additional component of our claim is fostlincome,
the impact of which is not recorded until the clagfinalized and cash is received.

18. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company wrotktlod value of the remaining assets consisting @ftimery
and equipment of the nutritional beverage busittegtiswas discontinued in 2004. The loss of appraxdaty
$0.3 million, net of tax, is included in the Coridated Statements of Income in the line Incomesflé®m
discontinued operations, net of tax expense (bgn&fie Company was not able to find a buyer festhassets.

19. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)
Interest paic $29,15¢ $22,037 $11,27(
Income taxes pai $10,95¢ $11,16¢ $17,53¢
Accrued purchase of property and equipn $381¢ $312¢ $ —
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20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases— We lease certain property, plant and equipmeetiun our operations under both capital and
operating lease agreements. Such leases, whigriararily for machinery, equipment and vehiclesyédnéease
terms ranging from 1 to 20 years. Certain of theraping lease agreements require the payment dfaud rentals
for maintenance, along with additional rentals ldame miles driven or units produced. Rent expeinedyding
additional rent, was $27.3 million, $22.2 millionda$14.8 million for the years ended December BD822007 an
2006, respectively.

The composition of capital leases which are refléets Property, plant and equipment in the Corestiet
Balance Sheets are as follows:

December 31

2008 2007
(In thousands)
Machinery and equipme $1,237 $6,947
Less accumulated amortizati (657) (2,12¢)
Total $ 58C $4,81¢

Purchase Obligations— We have entered into various contracts obligatie to purchase minimum quantities
of raw materials used in our production processetiding cucumbers and tank yard space.

Future minimum payments at December 31, 2008, umolercancelable capital leases, operating leagks an
purchase obligations are summarized as follows:

Capital Operating Purchase
Leases Leases Obligations
(In thousands)
2009 $ 32C $11,07¢ $157,91(
2010 274 8,171 6,42(
2011 88 6,51( 2,67¢
2012 64 4,73¢ 2,23¢
2013 66 2,99¢ 69¢
Thereafte 54 1,28¢ 657
Total minimum payment 86€ $34,77¢ $170,59
Less amount representing inter (78
Present value of capital lease obligati $ 78¢

Insurance — We have established insurance programs with retewnti selected levels of property and casu
risks, primarily related to employee health carerkers’ compensation claims and other casualtyekdglany of
these potential losses are covered under convehiimsurance programs with third party carrierswiitgh
deductible limits. The deductibles for casualtyiragrange from $50 thousand to $500 thousand, dipgmipon
the type of coverage. We believe we have estaldiadequate reserves to cover these claims.

Litigation, Investigations and Audits— We are party in the conduct of our businessttain claims, litigation,
audits and investigations. We believe we have aategeserves for any liability we may incur in ceation with
any such currently pending or threatened mattesulropinion, the settlement of any such currepégnding or
threatened matter is not expected to have a mbaehi@rse impact on our financial position, anmeallts of
operations or cash flows.
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21. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
We utilize derivative financial instruments incladirate swaps to manage our exposure to intertestisés.

During 2008, the Company entered into a $200 nmillang-term interest rate swap agreement with &cede
date of November 19, 2008 to lock into a fixed LIB@terest rate base. Under the terms of the agreem
$200 million in floating rate debt was swappedddixed rate of 2.9% interest rate base for a pleoici24 months,
amortizing to $50 million for an additional nine nths at the same 2.9% interest rate. The Compahyatiapply
hedge accounting and recorded the fair value efitfstrument on its balance sheet within other l@mg liabilities.
The fair value of the swap was a liability of apgmately $7.0 million. The Company recorded theenge related
to the mark to market adjustment of $7.0 milliorthin the Other (income) expense line of the Consbéd
Statements of Income.

22. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivabfmancial assets with carrying values that apipnate fail
value. Accounts payable and the Company’s varigdikedebt (revolving credit facility) are financlalbilities with
carrying values that approximate fair value. Aetember 31, 2008, the carrying value of the Comisdixed
rate senior notes was $100.0 million and fair valas estimated to be $98.9 million based on quotarket rates.

The fair value of the Company’s interest rate sagrement as described in Note 21 as of Decemb&088
was a liability of approximately $7.0 million. Tli&ir value of the swap was determined using Leviep2its.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted pribasare observable for an asset or liability,esitthrectly or
indirectly.

23. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION AND MAJOR CUSTOM ERS

We manage operations on a company-wide basis yhenaking determinations as to the allocation of
resources in total rather than on a segment-leagEbWe have designated our reportable segmesesl lsen how
management views our business. We do not segragstés between segments for internal reportingefdre,
asset-related information has not been presented.

During the first quarter of 2008, the Company cleghigs internal reporting structure from produdegaries tc
channel based. The Company’s new reportable segnanpresented below, are consistent with the erann
which the Company reports its results to the copefrating decision maker.

Our North American Retail Grocery segment sellswbeal and private label products to customers wittngn
United States and Canada. These products inclaetttepj peppers, relishes, salsas, condensed aiyteaerve
soup, broths, gravies, jams, salad dressings, sanor-dairy powdered creamer, aseptic productshaby food.
Brand names sold within the North American Retabb&gry segment include the following pickle brarféssman’s
®  Nalley's®, Peter Pipef®, and Steinfel® . Also sold are brands related to sauces and syBgmmet's®,
Hoffman Hous®, Roddenbery’s Northwoodsand San Antonio Farnfs. Infant feeding products are sold under
the Nature’s Goodnes® brand, while our non-dairy powdered creamer is solder our proprietar€remora®
brand. Our refrigerated products are sold undemMbeha Mix® and Second Natur@brand names, and our jams
and other sauces are sold undert®. Smith® and Habitant®® brand names.

Our Food Away From Home segment sells pickle prtgjuton-dairy powdered creamers, salsas, aseptic an
refrigerated products, and sauces to food servistomers, including restaurant chains and foodliligton
companies, within the United States and Canada.
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Our Industrial and Export segment includes the Camyis co-pack business and non-dairy powdered ageam
sales to industrial customers for use in indusgpgilications, including for repackaging in portimontrol packages
and for use as an ingredient by other food manufact. Export sales are primarily to industrialtonsers.

We evaluate the performance of our segments basadtcsales dollars, gross profit and direct ojregat
income (gross profit less freight out, sales comsioiss and direct segment expenses). The amoutits fiollowing
tables are obtained from reports used by our sen&@ragement team and do not include allocated indares.
Other operating expenses that are not allocatéddadnterest expense, stock based compensatidingéh segment
expenses, foreign currency charges, mark to madkastments on our interest rate swap, plant ajpsosts,
research and development costs and other corpasxpanses. Significant non cash components, other th
depreciation and amortization, include our marknarket adjustment of our interest rate swap, tsdlted in a
$7.0 million charge as well as a foreign currencgh&nge charge of $9.1 million related to our icdenpany note.
The accounting policies of our segments are theesasithose described in the summary of signifiaaobunting
policies set forth in Note 1 “Summary of Signifitaccounting Policies”.

Financial information relating to the Company’sagpble segments is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)

Net sales
North American Retail Grocel $ 917,10 $ 663,50t $502,78°
Food Away From Hom 294,02( 254,58 240,77¢
Industrial and Expot 289,52¢ 239,81t 195,83:
Total 1,500,65! 1,157,90: 939,39¢
Direct operating income
North American Retail Grocel 114,51: 85,29: 71,57(
Food Away From Hom 32,13: 28,32( 30,56(
Industrial and Expot 33,47: 32,70: 29,07
Total 180,11 146,31t 131,20:
Other operating expens 92,99: 61,37: 46,85(
Operating incomi $ 87,12t $ 8494+ $ 84,35
Depreciation
North American Retail Grocel $ 23,060 $ 19,47¢ $ 13,36:
Food Away From Hom 5,42¢ 4,77 4,824
Industrial and Expot 2,34¢ 2,52¢ 2,312
Corporate office 1,49¢ 1,00¢ 882
Total $ 32,32¢ $ 27,79: $ 21,38
Trademark impairmen
North American Retail Grocel $ 56C $ — $ 8,20C

Food Away From Hom — — _
Industrial and Expot — — —

Total $ 56C $ — $ 8,20
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Geographic Information— We had revenues to customers outside of the USitatds of approximately 14.3
and 6.2% of total consolidated net sales in 20@B2007, respectively, with 13.6% going to Canadaqd@s.

Longdived assets outside the United States, excluditapgible assets, were $31.1 million and $38.7ionilas

of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Major Customers— Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and affiliates accounteddpproximately 15.1% and 13.8% of our

consolidated net sales in 2008 and 2007, respéctiBales to WaMart, Inc. and affiliates are included in our Nc
American Retail Grocery segment. No other custameeounted for more than 10% of our consolidatedalets.

Total trade receivables with Wal-Mart Stores, laed affiliates represented approximately 14.5%Bh68% of

our total trade receivables as of December 31, 20@82007, respectively.

Product Information — The following table presetiits Company’s net sales by major products.

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)

Products

Non-dairy powdered cream $ 351,83t $ 299,19: $267,38!
Soup and infant feedir 336,51¢ 322,22: 224,18
Pickles 325,57¢ 329,68t 326,31
Salad dressin 156,88: 29,29t —
Jams and othe 153,92 29,97 —
Aseptic 83,19¢ 80,78¢ 78,39:
Mexican sauce 52,71¢ 25,86: —
Refrigeratec 39,98 40,88¢ 43,11%
Total net sale $1,500,65( $1,157,90. $939,39¢
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24, QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (unaudited)

The following is a summary of our unaudited qudyteesults of operations for 2008 and 2007:

Quarter
First Second Third Fourth
(In thousands, except per share date

Fiscal 2008
Net sales $360,62. $367,36¢ $374,57¢ $398,08:
Gross profit 70,38¢ 68,62¢ 73,16( 79,84¢
Income from continuing operations, before incomes 2,797 11,88: 15,81 8,96:
Net income(1, 2,061 8,29: 11,08( 6,791
Net income per common sha

Basic .07 27 .3t 22

Diluted .07 .2€ .3t 21
Fiscal 2007
Net sales $258,98: $256,03. $271,95. $370,93t
Gross profit 52,08¢ 53,60’ 58,73: 75,86
Income from continuing operations, before incomes 12,15: 15,17: 16,94¢ 22,25
Net income(2 7,414 9,36% 10,56¢ 14,27¢
Net income per common sha

Basic .24 .3C .34 A€

Diluted .24 .3C .34 A€

(1) Includes loss, net of tax, from discontinued operet of $(336) in the fourth quarter of 20!

(2) Includes loss, net of tax, from discontinued operat of $(9) and $(21) in the first and second tprarof 2007,
respectively
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participatiothefCompany’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, have evaluated the effectiverefshe Company’s disclosure controls and procesi(ae defined
in Rules 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchand®ft934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) as of
December 31, 2008. Based on such evaluations,dhg@ny’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finah€ficer
have concluded that, as of the end of such petfi@dCompany’s disclosure controls and procedures efective
in recording, processing, summarizing, and repgrtim a timely basis, information required to becttised by the
Company in the reports that it files or submitsemithe Exchange Act, and that information is acdated and
communicated to the Chief Executive Officer andeERinancial Officer, as appropriate, to allow tigndiscussion
regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estdbj and maintaining adequate internal controf ove
financial reporting, as such term is defined indRLBa-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Compangsagement,
with the participation of Company’s Chief Executi@éficer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluatbd
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting based on the criteria settfan Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Ccssion.
Based on this evaluation, the company’s managehsmntoncluded that, as of December 31, 2008, thep&oy's
internal control over financial reporting was etfee.

The Company’s independent registered public ac@ogifirm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, has issued an
attestation report on the Company'’s internal cdrdver financial reporting as of December 31, 2008s report is
included with this Form 10-K.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or déte
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjectdio that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in amglitir that the degree of compliance with thecpesi or
procedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

There was no change in the Company’s internal obatrer financial reporting (as defined in Rule 413#{) of
the Exchange Act) identified in connection with thaluation required by Rule 13a-15¢@)the Exchange Act , th
occurred during the fourth quarter of the fiscadiyeovered by this report on Form 10-K, that hatenlly
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the Company’s internal control over financegorting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
TreeHouse Foods, Inc.
Westchester, IL 60154

We have audited the internal control over financéglorting of TreeHouse Foods, Inc. and subsidigtiee
“Company”) as of December 31, 2008, based on @itstablished iinternal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatigrise Treadway Commission. The Companyianagement
responsible for maintaining effective internal cohbver financial reporting and for its assessnudrihe
effectiveness of internal control over financigboging, included in the accompanying ManagemermtaReon
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our rasgibility is to express an opinion on the Comparigternal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8oa
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financiaporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dugincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and tipgraffectiveness of internal control based onabsessed risk,
and performing such other procedures as we comsldercessary in the circumstances. We believethaudit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvisi the
company’s principal executive and principal finalafficers, or persons performing similar funcgpand effected
by the company board of directors, management, and other peetomprovide reasonable assurance regardin
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacat of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A compsaimgernal control over financial reporting incleglthose
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to thenteaiance of records that, in reasonable detailirately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of trsetsof the company; (2) provide reasonable asseriuat
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepargation of financial statements in accordanch generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeiordgcordanc
with authorizations of management and directoithefcompany; and (3) provide reasonable assurageeding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigjon, use, or disposition of the company’s assleat could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the poséti of
collusion or improper management override of cdatnmaterial misstatements due to error or fraugl nw be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Alsogat@ns of any evaluation of the effectivenesshefinternal contr
over financial reporting to future periods are gagbjo the risk that the controls may become inadegjbecause of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of caanpé with the policies or procedures may detemorat

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleaespects, effective internal control over fical
reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on therieriestablished imternal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the consolidated financial statgsmand financial statement schedule as of anthéyear ended
December 31, 2008 of the Company and our repoeddaeébruary 25, 2009 expressed an unqualified apion
those financial statements and financial statersemedule.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 25, 2009
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Iltem 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente

Information required by this item about our dirgstand executive officers is included in our Pr&tgstement
(“2009 Proxy Statement”) to be filed with the Seties and Exchange Commission in connection with2009
annual meeting of the stockholders under the hgadirectors And Management — Directors and Executive
OfficersandElection of Directorsaand is incorporated herein by reference.

Information about compliance with the reportinguiggments of Section 16(a) of the Securities Exgleafict
of 1934, as amended, by our executive officersdirettors, persons who own more than ten perceatiotommol
stock, and their affiliates who are required to pbnwith such reporting requirements, is includedur 2009 Prox
Statement under the headin§#ock Ownership — Security Ownership of Certaineiieial Owners and
ManagemenandSection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coamleand is incorporated herein by referer
Information about the Audit Committee Financial EXgs included in our 2009 Proxy Statement unbertteading,
Corporate Governance- Meetings of the Board of Directors and Committeetitgs/Role of Committeesmnd is
incorporated herein by reference.

The information required by this item concerning executive officers is incorporated herein by refee to
our proxy statement (to be filed) for our April M09 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for our emplogeddirectors. A copy of the code is posted orveelsite
www.treehousefoods.com. If we amend the code, amtgany waivers under the code, that are applicabderr
directors, chief executive officers, or other passsubject to our securities trading policy, whighdo not
anticipate doing, then we will promptly post thaiendment or waiver on our website.

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item is includedie 2009 Proxy Statement under the headBigek
Ownership, Compensation Discussion and Analysisclitkve Compensation, Compensation Committee daies|
and Insider ParticipatiorandCommittee Reports — Report of the Compensation @teeiand is incorporated
herein by reference. Notwithstanding anything ®dbntrary set forth in this report, tiemmittee Reports —
Report of the Compensation Commiisection of the 2009 Proxy Statement shall be dedmbd “furnished” and
not “filed” for purposes of the Securities Exchamget of 1934, as amended.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners afbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

The information required by this item is includade 2009 Proxy Statement under the headtagk
Ownership — Security Ownership of Certain Bendfidianers and Managemeanhd is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information required by this item is includedihe 2009 Proxy Statement under the headiogporate
Governancend is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information required by this item is includedihe 2009 Proxy Statement under the headiags Billed by
Independent Registered Public Accounting Fand is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

The following documents are filed as part of thisri 10-K.
1. Financial Statements filed as a part of thisudoent under Item 8.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,0800’

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@imcember 31, 2008, 2007 and 2
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2008, 20@7200¢
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeailed December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

2. Financial Statement Schedule
Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun
3. Exhibits
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas
duly caused this report to be signed on its behathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

February 26, 2009

TREEHOUSE FOODS, INC.

/s/ Dennis F. Riorda

Dennis F. Riordan
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbipothe
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name

/s/ Sam K. Ree

Sam K. Reed

/s/ Dennis F. Riorda

Dennis F. Riordan

/sl George V. Bayl

George V. Bayly

/sl Diana S. Fergusc

Diana S. Fergusa

/s/ Frank J. ¢ Connell

Frank J. ¢ Connell

/sl Ann M. Sardin

Ann M. Sardini

/sl Gary D. Smitt

Gary D. Smitr

/sl Terdema L. Ussery,

Terdema L. Ussery,

Title Date

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive February 26, 20C
Officer and Director (Principal Executive
Officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial February 26, 20C
Officer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

Director February 26, 20C
Director February 26, 20C
Director February 26, 20C
Director February 26, 20C
Director February 26, 20C
Director February 26, 20C

75




Table of Contents

SCHEDULE I
TREEEHOUSE FOODS, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006
Allowance for doubtful accounts deducted from actsueceivable:
Balance Charge Write- Off of
Beginning (Credit) to Uncollectible Balance
Year of Year Income Acquisitions Accounts Recoverie: End of Year
(In thousands)
2006 $ 320 $ @44 3 — 49 $ — $ 227
2007 227 252 301 (147) 3 637
2008 637 15C — (314 5 47¢
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Exhibit No.
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

10.1**

10.2**

10.3**

10.4**

10.5**

10.6

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit Description

Distribution Agreement, dated as of June 27, 206@Byeen Dean Foods Company and TreeHouse
Foods, Inc. is incorporated by reference to ExHititto our Current Report on Form 8-K dated June
28, 200t

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 1, 290énd between Del Monte Corporation and
TreeHouse Foods, Inc. is incorporated by referém&echibit 2.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
dated March 2, 200

Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 20, 2007 ngnBilver Brands Partners Il, L.P., VDW Farms,
Ltd., VDW Management, L.L.C., and Bay Valley Foolk( is incorporated by reference to Exhibit
2.1 to our Current Report on Forr-K dated April 23, 2007

Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 24, 2007 é&eti®. Smith Operating Trust, E.D. Smith
Limited Partnership, E.D. Smith Income Fund andeHeuse Foods, Inc. is incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 2.1 to our Current Report on Fori-K dated June 27, 200

Form of Restated Certificate of Incorporation oé@iHouse Foods, Inc. is incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Amendment No. 1 to our Registratftatement on Form 10 filed with the Commission
on June 9, 200

Form of Amended and Restated By-Laws of TreeHows®§; Inc. is incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to Amendment No. 1 to our Registrat®tatement on Form 10 filed with the Commission
on June 9, 200

Form of TreeHouse Foods, Inc. Common Stock Ceatifiés incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.
Amendment No. 1 to our Registration Statement amF filed with the Commission on June 9, 2
Stockholders Agreement, dated January 27, 200&nHdybetween, TreeHouse Foods, Inc., Dean Foods
Company, Sam K. Reed, David B. Vermylen, E. NidWialCully, Thomas E. O’Neill, and Harry J.
Walsh is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.®tr Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with
the Commission on May 13, 20!

Rights Agreement between TreeHouse Foods, IncTaadBank of New York, as rights agent is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to ourr€at Report on Form-K dated June 28, 20(

Form of Certificate of Designation of Series A &rrfParticipating Preferred Stock (attached as an
Exhibit to the Rights Agreement that is incorpodabg reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report
on Form &K dated June 28, 200

Form of Rights Certificate (attached as an Exhibthe Rights Agreement that is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report onnfr &-K dated June 28, 200

Employment Agreement, dated January 27, 2005, bybatween TreeHouse Foods, Inc. and Sam K.
Reed is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.@ur Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with
the Commission on May 13, 20!

Employment Agreement, dated January 27, 2005, tybatween TreeHouse Foods, Inc. and David B.
Vermylen is incorporated by reference to Exhibi2l® our Registration Statement on Form 10 filed
with the Commission on May 13, 20

Employment Agreement, dated January 27, 2005, tybatween TreeHouse Foods, Inc. and E. Nichol
McCully is incorporated by reference to Exhibit3@ our Registration Statement on Form 10 filed
with the Commission on May 13, 20

Employment Agreement, dated January 27, 2005, tybatween TreeHouse Foods, Inc. and Thomas
E. O'Neill is incorporated by reference to Exhib@.4 to our Registration Statement on Form 10 filed
with the Commission on May 13, 20

Employment Agreement, dated January 27, 2005, tybatween TreeHouse Foods, Inc. and Harry J.
Walsh is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 110.5ur Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with
the Commission on May 13, 20!

Form of Subscription Agreement is incorporated dfgmrence to Exhibit 10.6 to our Registration
Statement on Form 10 filed with the Commission cayM3, 200¢
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Exhibit No.
10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13**

10.14*

10.15

10.16**
10.17

10.18

10.19**
10.20**

10.21**

10.22**
10.23

10.24*

Exhibit Description

Transition Services Agreement, dated as of Jun@@J5, between Dean Foods Company and
TreeHouse Foods, Inc. is incorporated by referém&exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
dated June 28, 20(

Employee Matters Agreement, dated as of June 20/, 2fetween Dean Foods Company and
TreeHouse Foods, Inc. is incorporated by referém&exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
dated June 28, 20(

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of June 27, 2@#gen Dean Foods Company and TreeHouse
Foods, Inc. is incorporated by reference to ExHibi3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated June
28, 200t

Trademark License Agreement between Dean Foods @myrgnd TreeHouse Foods, Inc. is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to ourr€uat Report on Form-K dated June 28, 20(
Trademark License Agreement between TreeHouse Fbudsaind Dean Foods Company, Dean
Intellectual Property Services Il, L.P. and Deae@alty Intellectual Property Services, L.P. is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to ourr€nt Report on Form-K dated June 28, 20(
Co-Pack Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2005, bat®ean Foods Company and TreeHouse Foods,
Inc. is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@@®ur Current Report on Forn-K dated June 28, 20!
Form of Memorandum of Amendment to Stockholderse&gnent and Employment Agreements of
Sam K. Reed, David B. Vermylen, E. Nichol McCulllhomas E. O'Neill, and Harry J. Walsh is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Anmerdt No. 1 to our Registration Statement on Form
10 filed with the Commission on June 9, 2(

TreeHouse Foods, Inc. Executive Deferred Compesrs&tian is incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to our Current Report on Fort-K dated August 3, 200

Credit Agreement dated as of June 27, 2005, betWemrHouse Foods, Inc. and a group of Lenders
with Bank of America as Administrative Agent, Swihime Lender and L/C Issuer is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 of our Form-Q filed with the Commission on May 12, 20

Executive Severance Plan, dated as of April 2162@Mich became effective May 1, 2006 is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ourr€uat Report on Form-K dated April 21, 200t
Amendment No. 1 dated as of August 31, 2006 tcCiieglit Agreement dated June 27, 2005 is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ourr€nt Report on Form-K dated August 31, 20C
Note Purchase Agreement dated as of Septembef@8,I% and among TreeHouse Foods, Inc. &
group of Purchasers is incorporated by referenéextobit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
dated September 22, 20

Form of Performance — Vesting Restricted Stock Alvagreement is incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Fori-K dated February 5, 200

Form of Performance — Vesting Restricted Stock Advagreement with Dennis F. Riordan is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of ourrrd.(-Q filed with the Commission May 9, 20C
Amendments to and a restatement of our 2005 Lomg:Tecentive Plan which was renamed the
“TreeHouse Foods, Inc. Equity and Incentive Planthcorporated by reference to Appendix A of the
Schedule 14A (Proxy Statement) dated February @77 .

Amendment to the TreeHouse Foods, Inc. Equity andrtive Plan is incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of our Form 1-Q filed with the Commission August 8, 20(

Amendment to No. 2 dated as of August 30, 200hedCredit Agreement dated June 27, 2005 is
incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to ourr@ut Report on Form-K dated September 4, 20(
First Amendment to the January 27, 2005 Employmaneéement by and between TreeHouse Foods,
Inc. and Sam K. Reed is incorporated by refereadexhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
dated November 5, 200
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Exhibit No.
10.25**

10.26**

10.27**

10.28**
10.29**
10.30**
10.31**
10.32**
10.33**
10.34**
211
23.1
311
31.2

32.1
32.2

Exhibit Description

First Amendment to the January 27, 2005 Employmaneéement by and between TreeHouse Foods,
Inc. and Thomas E. O'Neill is incorporated by refare to Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on Form
8-K dated November 5, 200

First Amendment to the January 27, 2005 Employmeneéement by and between TreeHouse Foods,
Inc. and David B. Vermylen is incorporated by refare to Exhibit 10.3 to our Current Report on Form
8-K dated November 5, 200

First Amendment to the January 27, 2005 Employmaneéement by and between TreeHouse Foods,
Inc. and Harry J. Walsh is incorporated by refeestacExhibit 10.4 to our Current Report on Form 8-K
dated November 5, 200

Employment Agreement by and between TreeHouse Ftnelsand Dennis F. Riordan is incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to our Current Reporf-orm K dated November 5, 200

First Amendment to the TreeHouse Foods, Inc. Exeelieferred Compensation Plan is incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to our Current Reporf-orm K dated November 5, 200

First Amendment to the TreeHouse Supplement Re¢intilan is incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.7 to our Current Report on Fort-K dated November 5, 200

First Amendment to the TreeHouse Foods, Inc. 2@08ritive Plan is incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to our Current Report on Fori-K dated November 5, 200

First Amendment to the Bay Valley Foods, LLC 2088dntive Plan is incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 to our Current Report on Fori-K dated November 5, 200

First Amendment to the TreeHouse Foods, Inc. Ecauity Incentive Plan is incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.10 to our Current Report on For-K dated November 5, 200

Amended and Restated TreeHouse Foods, Inc. Exechéverance Plan is incorporated by referen
Exhibit 10.11 to our Current Report on For-K dated November 5, 200

List of Subsidiarie:

Consent of Independent Registered Accounting HDalgitte & Touche LLF

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer Required WatdSection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
Certificate of Chief Financial Officer Required WsrdSection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certificate of Chief Executive Officer Required Wmdection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
Certificate of Chief Financial Officer Required WsrdSection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

** Management contract or compensatory plan or arraage
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SUBSIDIARIES OF TREEHOUSE FOODS, INC.

Bay Valley Foods, LLC, a Delaware limited liabilipmpany
THF Partner, Inc., a Delaware corporation
THF Equities, LP, a Delaware limited partnership



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®eggion Statement Nos. 333-126161 and 333-15@058orm S-8 of our reports dated
February 25, 2009, relating to the consolidatedrfoial statements and financial statement scheduleeeHouse Foods, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) and management’s report on thecéffeness of internal control over financial repugt appearing in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended Decer8he2008.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, lllinois

February 25, 2009



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Sam K. Reed, Chairman of the Board and Chiefchttee Officer certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of TreeHouse Foods, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to the
period covered by the repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statémend other financial information included iistheport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahare responsible for establishing and maintgjmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant, and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and puresdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingared

b.  Designed such internal control over finah@aorting, or caused such internal control ovearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissafisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coumyeldis report based on su
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in #gagtrant’s internal control over financial repogdithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesftf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@uaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions!

a. All significant deficiencies and materialakaeesses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, thatalwes management or other employees who have Hisag role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

February 26, 2009

/s/ Sam K. Reed

Sam K. Reel
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Dennis F. Riordan, Senior Vice President ande€Rinancial Officer, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of TreeHouse Foods, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to the
period covered by the repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statémend other financial information included iistheport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahare responsible for establishing and maintgjmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and puresdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingared

b.  Designed such internal control over finah@aorting, or caused such internal control ovearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissafisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coumyeldis report based on su
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in #gagtrant’s internal control over financial repogdithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesftf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@uaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions!

a. All significant deficiencies and materialakaeesses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, thatalwes management or other employees who have Hisag role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

February 26, 2009

/s/ Dennis F. Riordan

Dennis F. Riordal
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of TreeHouseds, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2008, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Sam K. Reeldai@nan of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanil8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursua®éttion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Reportljapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the
Company

/s/ Sam K. Ree

Sam K. Reet
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

February 26, 2009



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of TreeHouseds, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2008, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Dennis F. |dam, Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémil8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuadédstion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Reportljapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the
Company

/s/ Dennis F. Riorda

Dennis F. Riordau
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

February 26, 2009



